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Four-Year Financial Summary

VOB 5 i 22

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

RS W &

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
2020 20194 20184 2017 F

ARBTRT ARKTT AR®BTE ARKETE

Revenue &

Cost of sales S AR

Gross profit EH

Profit before income tax B T 1S 80 Al A

Profit for the year attributable to RATHER AES
owners of the Company FREN

198,478 203,443 172,480 145,981
(124,621) (136,539) (127,107) (118,826)
73,857 66,904 45,373 27,155
52,593 49,075 36,090 19,023
43,821 41,851 31,550 16,798

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT GLEEE ISR 3

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194 20184 20174

ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTET ARETT

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERE
Total equity e

300,020 234,423 233,139 207,951
(77,069) (55,155) (105,178) (80,460)
222,951 179,268 127,961 127,491

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated i B TEMR LT IZG AP BHRERO—D -

financial statements.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) (and each being “we"”, “us” or “our
Group” for the purposes of this annual report as appropriate) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”).

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BEMRER :

AN A 32 K & Deyun Holding Ltd. (@R AR A
A ((RaahExs((BEx) e (B8] 'K
Al ETRERAR A REMBAR (FTEREE])
(BAFHME SEAIERMIKEE] (HEA))
HE2020812A31BEFE((HREHB) OF
iﬁ o

TEVBRRHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2020 2019
(Audited) (Audited)
2020 % 20194
(RER) ($e2=%)
Revenue (RMB’000) W (AR¥EFT) 198,478 203,443
Gross profit (RMB’000) EMAREFT) 73,857 66,904
Profit before income tax (RMB’000) BRET BB AT S R (AR F 1) 52,593 49,075
Profit for the year attributable to owners RRTHER AEIEE AR
of the Company (RMB’000) (AR®TFT) 43,821 41,851
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARES) 4.64 4.84
BUSINESS OVERVIEW XK EE

The Reporting Period was a remarkable year for the Group. The
Group delivered stable financial results amid the outbreak of novel
coronavirus (the “COVID-19") during the Reporting Period. Shares
of the Company were successfully listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 13 January 2021 (the “Listing Date”) and
the successful listing established a solid foundation for our business
development in the coming future.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has resulted in a large number of
fatalities. The lockdown imposed in many countries, including the
PRC has caused disruption of production activities and an adverse
impact on the livelihood of the people and the economy globally,
including the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

REBEEAEE M T JIFENN—F NS EH -
AEBEHNITEAFES ([COVID-19 ) & 15 H I ER
SBRETHMEES AR AKRHKR2021F1 513
A(EHTBERD RN EEBHARSHAERRA A
EW KM ETARMBEANESREETRE
EA o

COVID-19 & [B#EM Z AT - BIEHREEARNNZ
EEREMEHE BREETHTE  HEHR(B
PR RENES R EEBRTFZE -

* BT



Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

The lockdown also adversely affected the consumer markets
of the PRC, including lingerie and apparel markets, which are
downstream of our lingerie material industry. In the first quarter
of 2020, we experienced certain delays in placing order from our
customers and our revenue during January to March 2020 has
decreased as compared to the same period in 2019. The situation
improved since March 2020 when the COVID-19 has slowed down.
The PRC consumer market gradually rebounded in the second half
of 2020 driven by the PRC fiscal stimulus package and the increase
in domestic spending by the PRC consumers. Our revenue for the
second half of 2020 significantly improved as compared with the
same period in 2019.

Overall, we recorded a decrease of approximately 2.4% in the
total revenue and an increase of approximately 4.7% in profit
attributable to the owners of the Company during the Reporting
Period.

OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS STRATEGY

Looking ahead, our business is supported by various market drivers,
including rising disposable income, growing retail value of women'’s
outerwear and lingerie, wider application of lace fabric, further
expansion of online retailing and improved trading efficiency
brought by the development of e-commerce. The government
authorities may also roll out more stringent environmental
protection policies from time to time and the lace dyeing industry
will become more concentrated.

In order to capture the upcoming business opportunities and
maximise the interests of the Company and its shareholders,
we plan to: (i) expand our dyeing service capacity and enhance
efficiency by way of upgrading, replacing and acquiring of dyeing
machineries and facilities; (ii) comply with local policies through
replacement of a coal-burning-boiler by a natural-gas-boiler; (iii)
strengthen our research and development capability and quality
control for our dyeing services; and (iv) expand our integrated
enterprise resource planning system.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our colleagues for
their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would also like to
thank all our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

By order of the Board
Deyun Holding Ltd.
Mr. Lin Mingiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIREE W T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group provides dyeing services as well as sale and manufacture
of lace to its customers. The Group's customers are mainly lace
and swim wear manufacturers. Substantial portion of the Group’s

revenue are domestic sales.

Revenue by product types

Breakdown of the Group’s revenue by product types is as follows:

Bt %5 [0 B8

iy 2
AEBERETPRERBERBEURIEENHER
HE - AEENTEFPIEREERIKREER -
REBRRWBATD BN

B an B 5 B 75 89 2
AEBERERBRNE DN KREABNT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2020 2019
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’'000 revenue
2020 F 20194
AR®ET R HlE% ARETT 15z %
Dyeing 2 121,803 61.4 117,937 58.0
Lace g
— High density —-BERE 50,020 25.2 53,749 26.4
— Regular density —EERE 26,655 13.4 31,757 15.6
Sub-total NE 76,675 38.6 85,506 42.0
Total st 198,478 100.0 203,443 100.0
Revenue by geographical regions i BB 7 B W 2
Breakdown of the Group’s revenue by geographical regions is as A& E L@ 25 IR BAA T
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2020 2019
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’'000 revenue
2020 F 20194
AR®ET R HE% ARETT 1z %
Domestic sales BEz] 196,672 99.1 200,943 98.8
International sales SN 1,806 0.9 2,500 1.2
Total #agt 198,478 100.0 203,443 100.0

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RN

Dyeing

The Group’s dyeing revenue increased by approximately 3.3% from
approximately RMB117.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB121.8 million for the Reporting Period,
primarily attributable to the increase in average price of dyeing
services.

Lace

The Group’s lace products are classified into (i) regular density
lace, and (ii) high density lace. The lace revenue decreased by
approximately 10.3% from approximately RMB85.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB76.7
million for the Reporting Period, primarily attributable to outbreak
of COVID-19 in January 2020, in particular, caused decrease in the
Group’s lace revenue in Guangdong.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately 10.4% from approximately
RMB66.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB73.9 million for the Reporting Period, primarily
reflecting the significant increase in the gross profit margin driven
by the decrease in purchase costs of raw materials.

Gross profit margin increased from approximately 32.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 37.2% for the
Reporting Period.

Other income

Other income increased from approximately RMBO0.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB5.3
million for the Reporting Period, primarily attributable to the local
government grants to support the listing.

Other losses, net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB6,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and such losses increased to
approximately RMB1.6 million for the Reporting Period, primarily
attributable to the increase in losses on disposal of properties,
plant and equipment and exchange losses arising from the foreign
currency transaction.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of packaging
expenses and staff cost in relation to sales and marketing staff.
Selling and distribution expenses remained at similar level of
approximately RMB2.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 and for the Reporting Period.

RE

AEBAAZBRZAEZE2019F12A31BIEF
EHARBNMNTIOBEE LG MNA33% =R E M
HARBI218EE L TEANABRSE FHE
AR -

fE2

AEBWNEEERDAMAE BOHEEREEL
2 NNEZELE - R WEBREE2019F12
A3MBIEFEHARBSSHETLHD4103%
EREHENDAREICTEE T TEHMN2020
F1RBECOVD-19OZIEERAEEETRERMNT
BURES R D o

ENRER=R

EANAEZ2019F12A83MBEFEHARE
660BBLIEMBI04%ERERBHARE
T39B B TERBREMBHIREBE AT E
EFMERIBIG K o

EMERAEZF2019F12 A31 BILEEMNA32.9%
TAERRESENL37.2% °

HAb W A

HEMWABEZT2019F12A3MBEEEHAR
BO7TEETENEREHHOARKS3IAEET
FERPI AT RARGIRE BT -

Hit SR FH

HZE2019F12A31HILFE  REBEHESHEAM
RSB EAOARE6,000T MRS HEERIEER
ENENARB1688T FEHREEME
WEREEHENERBRINERZ S EENER BB
JNETEL -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RN

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from approximately RMB14.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB22.1 million for the Reporting Period, primarily due to the
increase in listing expenses.

Finance costs, net

The net finance costs decreased from approximately RMB1.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMBO0.2 million for the Reporting Period, primarily due to the
decrease in average bank borrowings from approximately RMB39.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB13.0 million for the Reporting Period. The average amount
of bank borrowings was calculated by multiplying the principal of
bank borrowings by the respective days borrowed during the year
divided by number of days for the year.

Income tax expenses

Deyun Technology, principal operating subsidiary of the Group, is
recognised as a High and New Technology Enterprise* (5 3 £ i
1t %) and therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and for the Reporting Period.
The income tax expenses increased from approximately RMB7.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB8.8 million for the Reporting Period, mainly due to the
recognition of listing expenses which were non-deductible for tax
purpose.

For the same reason, effective income tax rate increased from
approximately 14.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 16.7% for the Reporting Period.

Net profit and net profit margin

As a result of foregoing, the Group’s net profit for the year ended
31 December 2019 increased from approximately RMB41.9
million to approximately RMB43.8 million for the Reporting Period.
Net profit margin increased from approximately 20.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 22.1% for the
Reporting Period.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
Reporting Period (2019: nil).

*  For identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RN

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

Net current assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB74.2
million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB30.2
million). The current ratio of the Group increased from
approximately 1.6 times as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
2.0 times as at 31 December 2020. The increase in net current
assets and improvement of current ratio as at 31 December 2020
was primarily attributable to the expedited cash collection process
after the outbreak of COVID-19.

Cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
pledge of assets

The Group funds its business and working capital requirements
by using a balanced mix of internal resources, borrowings and
funds from listing. The Group will adjust its mix of funding mix
depending on the costs of funding and its actual needs.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB109.5 million (2019: approximately RMB38.5
million) and they were denominated in RMB, USD and HKD. The
significant increase in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December
2020 was primarily due to the increase in cash generated from
the Group’s business operations and the significant decrease in
the amount of bank borrowings repaid during the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared with those for corresponding period
in 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB13.0 million for the finance of business operations and
the fulfilment of working capital requirements (2019: RMB13.0
million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings carried
floating rates at 4.4% per annum (2019: 5.0% per annum). The
Group's bank borrowings were denominated in RMB and they
were secured by the Group’s properties, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of approximately RMB19.4 million (2019:
approximately RMB20.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total undrawn banking
facilities amounted to RMB62.0 million (2019: RMB40.0 million).

RBEE BFXERREEREBIL

357
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RN

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a gearing ratio of
approximately 5.8%, calculated by dividing total debt by total
equity (2019: approximately 7.3%). The decrease in the gearing
ratio was primarily due to the increase in the Group’s equity base.

Capital structure

As at the date of this report, the Company’s issued share capital
was HKD12,600,000 and the number of issued shares of the
Company was 1,260,000,000 ordinary shares of HKD0.01 each.

Capital expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group incurred cash flows on
capital expenditures for the purchase of properties, plant and
equipment in the amount of approximately RMB2.0 million (2019:
approximately RMB9.8 million).

Foreign exchange risks and hedging

The majority of assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated
in RMB, USD and HKD, and there are no significant assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than RMB, which is the functional
currency of the major operating companies within the Group.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hedge its foreign
currency exposure. The Group regularly monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB2.8 million in relation to the purchase of
properties, plant and equipment (2019: approximately RMBO0.6
million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2019: nil).

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's employees are generally remunerated by way of
fixed salary and they may also be entitled to a number of welfare
benefits, including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy,
performance-based bonus, paid leave and share options. The
Group also make contributions to mandatory social security
funds for its employees. The Group utilises an appraisal system
for its employees and considers the appraisal results of individual
employees when conducting their salary review and determining
the amount of bonuses. To enhance the performance of the
employees, the Group provides its employees with adequate and
regular trainings.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 469 employees (2019:
540 employees) and the Group’s total employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments) for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB37.7 million (2019: approximately
RMB36.8 million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals during the
Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

During the Reporting Period, save for the expansion plans as
disclosed in the sections headed “Business” and “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated
28 December 2020, the Group had no specific plan for major
investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.

BERFHMBUR

REBEHREE —RARBREEF NI AESH
B RETAEEDMZIEREN  BEETRRER
THEEERETHMY EXEAL FFRALE
B -ARBETAREBEFLARFELERERES
HR-AEBREERA—EFZRER  LRE
TH W NEERAL S EEE EE b E8 /T
RER RRESEENEN AEEREERH
RSB E HAR I o

B2020F12A318  AEE X BFI469FEE
(2019F :540REB) - AEBENREHHENIE
ERAMTAE (BREESEHE) DAEAREK377
BET(019F : HARK368FHEHT)

EXRE -EXWEREE

BARESAEEEN  AEENREREBEE
MEARKRE BAUBRHE -

EARENRKEE

MRS B - B AR A BHIA20208612 A28 H
WBREREB] RIRAKRAERAERBERR]
EMATEENBERTEN AEERESEREKE
U B R A AN EE ok A TS A BB - AR -
AEEBEENONEREERS -

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R W MO

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

Net proceeds from the initial public offering (the “IPO"), after
deducting underwriting commissions and other relevant expenses,
amounted to approximately HKD85.6 million. As of the date of this
report, the net proceeds from the IPO had been applied as follows:

BERAABRERSRERE

RIVGEHAS REMAERASRK  BRXARE
E(ERLHARE] MERFENRG6EE
AL -BEAREAH FRAHABEMSHA
FECRTIAABA

Net proceeds Unused
Planned used as of balance as of Timeframe
use of net the date of the date of for the
Planned use of net proceeds proceeds this report this report  unused balance
Bz
THERH EZ
BE Lt EBRME FREAS AERBE
SEMSRERERE RERERZ RERH rBAGH WEER
HKD million HKD million HKD million
AEAT BEAT BEAL

Expand dyeing service capacity and enhance FEAR PARBEMRR

efficiency by way of upgrading, replacing HHBERFEREEIR
and acquiring machineries and facilities R

Strengthen research and development capabilty M3 ZEREMFEE N Rk
and quality control for dyeing services R mE

Replace a coal-burning-boiler by AXARBET RINERE

a natural-gas-boiler
Expand integrated enterprise planning resource  BEGA L EBRBIEZR

system
Repayment of bank loan BERITER
General working capital —-REEES

By end of 2022

499 14.1 3538 2022 F K]
By end of 2021

34 15 19 2021 EER]

By end of 2021

136 5.1 85 2021 EER]
By end of 2021

09 03 06 2021 EEA]

95 9.5 = NATER

By end of 2021

83 2 6.3 2021 FEAT

85.6 325 531

As of the date of this annual report, the Group has applied the net
proceeds from the IPO in the manner and proportion set out in the
Prospectus.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE W T

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 January 2021, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Saved as disclosed herein, the Group does not have any important
events after the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report.

Although the risk that PRC to experience another large-scale
COVID-19 outbreak is relatively low, certain regional outbreaks
can still negatively and substantially affect the supply chain
system of the Group. To minimise such risk, the management has
implemented the following measures in 2021:

(i) setting up epidemic prevention mechanism, enhancing the
hygienic level of our production plant and office, actively
monitoring the body temperature of the employees,
requesting our employees to wear masks at all time during
work and report promptly whenever they feel unwell
and encouraging the employees to take the COVID-19
vaccination;

(i)  further improving the automation rate of the production
process to reduce the reliance on production workers;

(i) exploring and approaching more alternative suppliers,
adequately increasing the stock volume of particular raw
materials and packaging materials to prevent disruption of
production caused by late delivery of a single supplier.

BEMEER

MR2021FE1H138  ARFRDAREBH AR S
FTER AR ERET -

BAFERAWEEIN  REER
FHRAMEYBEMEARNER °

HwERMRZEER

BERBELCES —HABEECOVID-19ZIFH AR
HEBRE BERERGEEZFDIUEHEAEERN
HEZEZRFELAEREATYE - BEAREE®
PR IR - BIEEE R 2021 FE A TEE :

(y BEUE#ES REEEIRERAEZNE
AR BEREABTIMNER ZXEEBR
If‘EHEF'ﬁﬁAWFLWDE mAETE LIRS

WEENE T#7TCOVID-19 R E & fE

(i) E—FPRELEEBENASHLE HIHE
ETARKRE

(i) RRAZRWBELZOBRHERERD  EEIEINE
ERMHEBREMHEANETE  BIEEERE
HEBTEXEMERZETH -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

==
=

EERERERERES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Mingiang (7K 3&), aged 65, is an executive Director and
the chairman of the Board. Mr. Lin Mingiang is also our controlling
shareholder and a director of all of the subsidiaries of our Group.
He is responsible for the strategic planning and overall budget of
our Group.

Mr. Lin Mingiang has over 31 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing business. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the committee
member of the Party Branch of Longxia Village of Changle District
in Fuzhou from April 1978 to August 1992. In August 1988, Mr.
Lin Mingiang took the role of the factory director of “Changle
Warp Knitted Fabrics Factory”, a collective enterprise established in
Fujian, which subsequently reformed as a limited liability company
and changed its name into Fujian Changle Xingsheng Warp-
knitted Fabrics Co., Ltd.* (REE RETMEEKLHEEMER A
Al) ("Xingsheng"”) in October 1996. Mr. Lin Mingiang was the
executive director and the manager of Xingsheng from October
1996 to January 2006. After Deyun merged with Xingsheng by
way of absorption. Mr. Lin Mingiang was appointed as a director
of Deyun in January 2006. Over the years, he has been responsible
for planning the company strategy and overall budget of Deyun.

Mr. Lin Mingiang was awarded the certificate of completion
of the course of Business Information Strategy and Knowledge
Management CEO Advanced Training Class by School of
Information Science and Technology, Tsinghua University in July
2005.

Mr. Lin Mingiang is the father of Ms. Lin Lili. Mr. Lin Mingiang
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Bingzhong, the uncle of Mr. Lin
Chaowen and Mr. Lin Chaowei. Saved as disclosed in this section,
Mr. Lin Mingiang is not connected with any other Directors or
members of the senior management of our Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERERE

Mr. Lin Chaowei (# 8§ &), aged 50, is our controlling
shareholder and executive Director. Mr. Lin Chaowei was
appointed as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and
was re-designated as our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He
is responsible for the overall business development and marketing
strategy of our Group.

Mr. Lin Chaowei has over 31 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Lin Chaowei served as an
employee, then the factory deputy director and the deputy general
manager at Xingsheng from October 1988 to December 2002. In
December 2002, he joined Deyun as a director and the general
manager where he has been responsible for making marketing
strategy, liaising with clients for business contracts, planning overall
budgets, administering site operations, and monitoring the safety
and health issues arising from production since then.

Mr. Lin Chaowei was awarded the certificate of completion of the
course of Corporate Leadership Advanced Training Class by Peking
University Private Economic Research Institute in May 2017.

Mr. Lin Chaowei is the nephew of Mr. Lin Mingiang, the cousin of Mr.
Lin Chaowen and Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr.
Lin Chaowei is not connected with any other Directors or members of
the senior management of our Company.

Mr. Lin Chaowen (#k 88 3X), aged 56, is our controlling
shareholder and executive Director. Mr. Lin Chaowen was
appointed as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and
was re-designated as our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He
is responsible for overseeing the purchasing aspects of our Group.

Mr. Lin Chaowen has over 35 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. He was a staff of Changle County
Chemical Fiber Weaving Factory from October 1984 to August
1988. From October 1988 to January 2006, he took the position
of the deputy general manager of Xingsheng. Mr. Lin Chaowen
joined Deyun in January 2006 as a deputy general manager and
has been a director of Deyun since then, where he gained extensive
knowledge and experience in the fabrics weaving and dyeing
industry. He has been primarily responsible for managing suppliers
and communicating with suppliers on product procurement.

Mr. Lin Chaowen is the nephew of Mr. Lin Mingiang, the cousin of
Mr. Lin Chaowei and Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr.
Lin Chaowen is not connected with any other Directors or members
of the senior management of our Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEERERE

Mr. Lin Bingzhong (# % &), aged 56, is our controlling
shareholder and executive Director. Mr. Lin Bingzhong was
appointed as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and
was re-designated as our Executive Director on 20 March 2020. He
is responsible for overseeing and managing the technical aspects of
our Group.

Mr. Lin Bingzhong has over 19 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Lin Bingzhong was the shop
assistant and then the executive of Changle District Supply and
Marketing Cooperative in Fuzhou from November 1980 to
December 1999. From January 2000 to December 2002, Mr.
Lin Bingzhong was the business manager of Xingsheng. Mr. Lin
Bingzhong joined Deyun in December 2002 as a director and the
deputy general manager. He has been supervising and managing
the technical affairs of Deyun since then.

Mr. Lin Bingzhong is the brother-in-law of Mr. Lin Mingiang and
the uncle of Ms. Lin Lili. Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Lin
Bingzhong is not connected with any other Directors or members
of the senior management of our Company.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo (# 77 /9), aged 57, is an Executive Director.
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo was appointed as a Director of our Company
on 17 February 2020 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 20 March 2020. He is responsible for the financial and
administration functions of our Group.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo has over 25 years of experience in the
accounting position in the weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Wei
Cunzhuo was the accountant of Changle City Association of Supply
and Marketing Cooperatives since August 1983. From March 1994
to January 2006, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo was the financial manager of
Xingsheng. Mr. Wei Cunzhuo joined Deyun in January 2006 as
the chief financial officer and the manager of the administration
department, and he has been appointed as a director and has been
managing the financial work, coordinating financial institutions
and handling human resources issues of Deyun since then.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo obtained his graduation certificate in Financial
Accounting major from Jingiang District Supply and Marketing

School in July 1983.

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo is not connected with any other Directors or
members of the senior management of our Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERERE

Ms. Lin Lili (# %0 %]), aged 38, is an Executive Director and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. Ms. Lin Lili was appointed
as a Director of our Company on 17 February 2020 and was re-
designated as our executive Director on 20 March 2020. She is
responsible for the information disclosure of our Group.

Ms. Lin was a lecturer in the Foreign Language College of Jimei
University in Xiamen from March 2009 to March 2016. In April
2016, she took the position of the secretary of the board of Deyun.

Ms. Lin obtained her Master of Arts degree from Xiamen University
in June 2008. She obtained the certificate for the qualifications
of teachers in institutions of higher learning from the Education
Department of Fujian in December 2011.

Ms. Lin Lili is the daughter of Mr. Lin Mingiang and the niece of
Mr. Lin Bingzhong. Ms. Lin Lili is the cousin of Mr. Lin Chaowei
and Mr. Lin Chaowen. Saved as disclosed in this section, Ms. Lin Lili
is not connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sheng Zijiu (2 ¥ 11), aged 76, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director, a member of the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Sheng Zijiu is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Mr. Sheng Zijiu has over 52 years of experience in the fabrics
weaving and dyeing industry. Mr. Sheng was the deputy
director of the chief engineers department in Changde Textile
Machinery Company Limited from September 1968 to April 1987.
Subsequently Mr. Sheng took the position of the deputy general
manager of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Industry Company Limited,
the deputy president of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Industry
Association and the head of Zhejiang Textile Machinery Quality
Supervision and Inspection Center from April 1987 to September
1997. He then worked in Shanghai Chunchao Industry Company
Limited as the project participant for the preparation and operation
of knitting and woven projects from September 1999 to July 2003.

Mr. Sheng is currently working in Zhejiang Fangzheng Textile
Machinery Testing Center Company Limited and Quality Appraisal
Center as the company consultant.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEERERE

Mr. Sheng Zijiu obtained his Bachelor’s degree majoring in textile
machinery design from Donghua University in July 1967. He was
awarded the qualification certificate of senior engineer by the
Zhejiang Light Industry Engineering and Technical Personnel of
Senior Position Assessing Committee in August 1993. From January
1993 to January 1998, he was a member of the Zhejiang Provincial
People’s Congress.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Sheng Zijiu is not connected
with any other Directors or members of the senior management of
our Company.

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (£ &), aged 36, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee on
16 December 2020. Mr. Chow Kit Ting is primarily responsible for
supervising the management of our Group independently.

Mr. Chow has over 13 years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance, compliance and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chow
previously worked in the audit department of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from September 2007 to March 2015 and last held the
position of manager. Mr. Chow subsequently took the position
of the financial controller and company secretary of Link Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8237) from March 2015 to January 2016. He then
acted the financial controller and company secretary of Kin Shing
Holdings Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1630) from February 2016 to August 2018.
Afterwards, he joined a private company, HY Technology Holding
Limited as its financial controller from August 2018 to December
2019 and was re-designated to Hua Yu (S) Pte. Ltd. since January
2020 until December 2020. He has been appointed as the financial
controller and company secretary of Rich River Holdings Limited
since July 2020 and September 2020, respectively. Mr. Chow
has also been an independent non-executive director of Eternity
Technology Holding Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1725), since July 2018.

Mr. Chow obtained his Bachelor's degree of commerce majoring
in accountancy from Macquarie University in November 2007. He
is @ member of the Certified Public Accountants (CPA) Australia
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Chow Kit Ting is not

connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEERERE

Mr. Yip Koon Shing (¥ 7% ), aged 55, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and of the Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020.
Mr. Yip Koon Shing is primarily responsible for supervising the
management of our Group independently.

Mr. Yip has over 25 years of experience in business development
and management in the transportation and logistics industry.
Mr. Yip was an executive of 3M Cogent Systems Inc. from March
1987 to January 1991. From April 1992 to June 1997, he worked
in Jardine Matheson & Co. and last held the position of assistant
general manager and chief representative of Jardine Transport
Services Group. At this position, Mr. Yip was mainly responsible for
managing business and operations of the entity and acting as key
liaison with overseas in managing business in China. Subsequently,
Mr. Yip started his own company, Good One Logistics Group, in
July 1997 and has been acting as its founder and chief advisor
since then.

Mr. Yip is currently also an independent non-executive director of
Orange Tour Cultural Holding Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8627).

Mr. Yip obtained his Bachelor of Science in business administration
degree from California State Polytechnic University, Pomona in
June 1988 and his master of business administration degree from
Loyola Marymount University in May 1992.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Yip Koon Shing is not
connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (Z % ), aged 36, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director, a member
of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee on 16 December 2020. Mr. Wong is
primarily responsible for supervising the management of our Group
independently.

Mr. Wong has over 13 years of accounting and corporate
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as audit associate in September 2007 and left as audit
senior in November 2011. He then took the position of audit
manager of Patrick Wong CPA Limited from February 2012 and
has been its practising director since March 2013. Mr. Wong has
also been an independent non-executive director of InvesTech
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1087), since 5 June 2017 and an
independent non-executive director of Confidence Intelligence
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1967), since 20 September 2019.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from
Hong Kong Baptist University in November 2007, Master of Science
in Applied Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2013, Master of Business Administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and
Master of Corporate Governance from The Open University of
Hong Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administration.

Saved as disclosed in this section, Mr. Wong Chun Shek Edmond is

not connected with any other Directors or members of the senior
management of our Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Guanggiang (R #38), aged 42, has been our business
manager of lace sales since March 2016. He is primarily responsible
for managing the sales, promotion and management of our lace
products.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the sales, purchase
and management of textile products. Before joining our Group,
he worked in the dyeing factory of Sun Hing Industries Holding
Limited from March 2000 to March 2001, and then he was
transferred to Sun Hing Elastic and Lace Factory Limited as the
group leader. In August 2002, Mr. Wu became a senior salesman
in the business department of Sun Hing Industries Holding Limited.
Subsequently, in September 2006, he took the position of assistant
manager of the purchasing department at Chung Tai Garment
Factory and as a special assistant to the general manager and
factory director as his last position. From December 2011 to March
2016, Mr. Wu was the business manager of Xiamen Liying Knitting
Co., Ltd. In March 2016, Mr. Wu joined Deyun as the business
manager of lace sales and has been working with us since then.

Ms. Wang Guangyan (£ ¥ #), aged 43, has been our director
of weaving factory since May 2015. She is primarily responsible
for managing the manufacturing and operations of the weaving
factory.

Ms. Wang has over 23 years of experience in the manufacturing
and management of textiles industry. Prior to joining Deyun, she
was the workshop director in Qinghong Fuging Lace Co., Ltd. In
March 2000, Ms. Wang joined Changle Yongyi Lace Co., Ltd as
a workshop director. She then took her position as production
manager of Changle Xinyu Lace Co., Ltd. In May 2015, Ms. Wang
Guangyan joined Deyun as the director of the weaving factory and
has been working with us since then.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Xu Jing (& &), aged 43, was appointed as our company
secretary on 20 February 2020. She is responsible for our Group’s
company secretarial duties and corporate governance matters in
relation to our Company.

Ms. Xu has over 18 years of experience in the corporate services
field. Ms. Xu has been a company secretary of Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (stock code: 8310) since May 2016.
She is responsible for supervising the company secretarial teams
to provide a full range of listed and private company secretarial
services as director in a local enterprise service provider in Hong
Kong, Excellent Enterprise Services Limited. Prior to her current
position, Ms. Xu was a company secretary and a financial internal
control audit director at China Health Group Inc., a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8225) from
December 2015 to June 2016. She also worked as a chief financial
officer at Shenzhen Jiantao Technology Company Limited from
February 2012 to April 2015. During June 2007 to March 2012,
Ms. Xu took the position of the financial director and a qualified
accountant at Shenzhen Neptunus Interlong Bio-Technique
Company Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 8329). From July 2002 to May 2007, Ms.
Xu worked at Yulong Computer Telecommunication Scientific
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (the wholly owned subsidiary of a Hong
Kong listed company, Coolpad Group Limited (stock code: 2369),
formerly known as China Wireless Technologies Limited) as the
company accountant.

Ms. Xu obtained her Bachelor of Administration degree from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in June 2002. Ms.
Xu was awarded the certificate of certified public accountant by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October
2003. Ms. Xu has been a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certificated Accountants since September 2013. Ms. Xu has
also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2016.
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The Board recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of its shareholders as a whole. The
Company has adopted a set of corporate governance practices
which aligns with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) since the Listing Date.

As the Company was not yet listed as at 31 December 2020, the
CG Code does not apply to the Company during the Reporting
Period but it has applied to the Company since the Listing Date.
The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code since the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

The Board will continue to review and improve the corporate
governance practices of the Group to ensure compliance with the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code since the Listing Date
to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During
the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with
the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy of the Group
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Lin Mingiang is the chairman of the Board and executive
Director, who has a pivotal role to the Board in relation to the
management, strategic planning and overall budget of our Group.

The Company has not appointed any chief executive officer. The
daily operation and management of the Company is monitored
by the executive Directors and the senior management. The
Board considers the present structure is more suitable for the
Company because it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.

CG Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman should at
least annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other directors. During the
Reporting Period, as the Company has not listed on the Stock
Exchange, such meeting was not conducted.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance, business and corporate
governance. Their skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure
that strong independent views and judgement are brought in the
Board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry
weight in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements, and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. The Company received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.
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THE BOARD EEg

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and four ZEZEZHEABANBRTESRUNABILIENTE
independent non-executive Directors. The Board’s composition as T - EEF SR AF IR B ARSI T ¢

at the date of this annual report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors #,

Date of joining

Name Age Gender  the Group Roles and responsibilities

HE Fie HEl MAXEEBH AERBE

Mr. Lin Mingiang 65 Male 23 January 2006 Overseeing the management, strategic
planning and overall budget of our Group

ME®R L& 65 5% 5 20064 1A23H ERAEENER  KEABINEBEER

Mr. Lin Chaowei 50 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the business development and
marketing strategy of our Group

MERE K& 50 5% 5 2002128118 ERAEENEBEREKE HER

Mr. Lin Chaowen 56 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the purchasing aspects of
our Group

MREA e 4 56 5% 5 2002F12R11H ERAEENRBERE

Mr. Lin Bingzhong 56 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing and managing the technical
aspects of our Group

MERBEE 56 5% 5 2002128118 ERRERBAEENRINER

Mr. Wei Cunzhuo 57 Male 11 December 2002 Overseeing the financial and administration
department of our Group

RENEE 57 5% 5 2002128118 ERAEENITERITHAE

Ms. Lin Lili 38 Female 1 April 2016 Overseeing the information disclosure of
our Group; serves as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee

MFIF 2 £ 387% Z  2016F4 718 ERAEENENRE EEREZES

5
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Name Age
e Fir

Gender

5Bl

BAFITES

Date of joining
the Group
AR EE B H

Roles and responsibilities

ABRBE

Mr. Sheng Zijiu 76

BTNEE 76 5%

Mr. Chow Kit Ting 36

BABELE 36 5%

Mr. Yip Koon Shing 55

ERR L E 555%

Mr. Wong Chun Sek 36

Edmund

=HRBLE 365

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed

Male

3

Male

Male

Male

16 December 2020

2020512 A 16 H

16 December 2020

20205612 A 16 H

16 December 2020

2020512 A 16 H

16 December 2020

202012 A 16 H

“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this

annual report.
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Supervising and providing independent
advice to our Group; serves on the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee
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Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee; serves on the
Remuneration Committee

EBAEERAAREBVER  BEE
REEGER  EEFMEEGKE

Supervising and providing independent advice
to our Group; serves as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee; serves on
the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee

EBEAEERAAREBYER  BEFH
MEEGER  EEEREZEGRIES
ZEgKE

Supervising and providing independent
advice to our Group; serves on the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee
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The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as the executive Directors possess extensive
experience in managing the Group’s business operations; and
professional knowledge in the fabrics weaving and dyeing industry,
while the four independent non-executive Directors possess
professional knowledge and broad experience in accounting,
finance, business and corporate governance. The Directors are
of the opinion that the current Board structure can ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board and also safeguard the
interests of the Company and its shareholders.

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board at all times met the requirement of
the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)
with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company. It oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions,
financial performance and internal controls and it is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board shall make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
Daily business operations and management, inter alia, the
implementation of strategies are delegated to the executive
Directors along with other senior management. They report
periodically to the Board their work and business decisions.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with our Company
up to a term of three years commencing from 16 December 2020,
which may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
letter of appointment.
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Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), at any time or from time to time, the
Board shall have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional
Director to the existing Board subject to any maximum number
of Directors, if any, as may be determined by the members in
a general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
our Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of our Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an
annual general meeting.

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one third shall be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors
to retire in each year shall be those who have been in office
longest since their last re-election or appointment but, as between
persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day, those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office (but without
prejudice to any claim which such Director may have for damages
for any breach of any contract between him and the Company)
and the Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another in
his place.

Pursuant to articles 108(a) and 112 of the Articles, Mr. Lin
Mingiang, Mr. Lin Chaowei, Mr. Lin Chaowen, Mr. Lin Bingzhong,
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo, Ms. Lin Lili, Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Chow Kit
Ting, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM").
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

To enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high
standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets
out the objective and approach to achieve and maintain diversity
of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the criteria in
selecting candidates to the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company is also committed to adopting a similar approach to
promote diversity of the management (including but not limited to
the senior management) to enhance the effectiveness of corporate
governance. The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including knowledge and experience in the areas of fabrics
weaving and dyeing, transportation and logistics auditing and
accounting, business administration. Furthermore, the Directors
range from 36 years old to 76 years old, and comprise 9 males and
1 female.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of Board members and compliance with relevant codes governing
board diversity under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy and diversity profile (including
gender balance) from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revision
that may be required and recommend any such revisions to the
Board. The Company will also disclose in the corporate governance
report on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives on
an annual basis.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to consider and make
recommendations on suitable candidates for directorship.

Selection criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7) requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for
achieving diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company'’s
business.

The aforesaid factors are for reference only, and not meant to

be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.
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Procedures for nominating director

Subject to the provisions in the Articles and the Listing Rules, if the
Board recognises the need for an additional Director or a member
of senior management, the following procedures will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the company secretary
of the Company will provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(3) The Nomination Committee will make recommendation to
the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an independent non-
executive director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.
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Monitoring and reporting

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and reports to the Board annually.

PROCEEDINGS OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM shall be called by at least 20 clear business days’
notice in writing, and a general meeting of the Company, other
than an AGM, shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice in writing.
The notice shall be exclusive of the day on which it is served or
deemed to be served and of the day for which it is given, and must
specify the time, place and agenda of the meeting and particulars
of the resolution(s) to be considered at that meeting and, in the
case of special business, the general nature of that business.

A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board may be held
by means of such telephone, electronic or other communication
facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting.

A Director shall not vote (nor shall he be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or
arrangement or proposal in which he or any of his close associate(s)
has/have a material interest, and if he shall do so his vote shall
not be counted (nor shall he be counted in the quorum for that
resolution).

As the Company has not been listed on the Stock Exchange during
the Reporting Period, the Board and each committee of the Board
had only one meeting to discuss and approve listing related matters
of the Company. Going forward, at least four regular Board
meetings involving active participation, either in person or through
electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors will
be held at approximately quarterly intervals in each financial year
to comply with code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code. All Directors
will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for the
regular board meetings. Written notice of at least 14 days will be
given of a regular board meeting to all directors, and agenda and
accompanying board papers will be sent to all directors at least 3
days before the intended date of meeting. A Board meeting was
held on 29 March 2021.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings of the Company held during the Reporting
Period are set out in the table below:

Hif SEERARARTNESTERE
E’Jtﬁ)ﬁqaﬁ'ﬁEATi’%

= =2 4 At
z HE 8

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEERE

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
EEnR =3 EREES REZEE FMEES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lin Mingiang MEREE 11 = = =
Mr. Lin Chaowei MERE A& 11 = = =
Mr. Lin Chaowen MBI 11 = — =
Mr. Lin Bingzhong MERELE 11 = = =
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo BEAKE 11 = = =
Mes. Lin Lili MRFIF 2+ 171 - 171 -
Independent Non-Executive BIFHITES

Directors

Mr. Sheng Zijiu BFNEE 171 171 171 171
Mr. Chow Kit Ting BHELE 11 11 = 11
Mr. Yip Koon Shing B T E 11 11 11 11
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund E=EEEE 11 11 11 11

The management has been providing all members of the Board a
monthly update in accordance with code provision C.1.2 of the CG
Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee"”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which were posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and
the Company (www.ds-lace.com). All committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Group established the Audit Committee on 16 December
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules and paragraph C3 and paragraph D3 of the
Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chow Kit Ting, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under
Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and have three other
members, namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr.
Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (i) assisting the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; (i) overseeing the audit process and performing other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance;
(iv) making recommendations to the Board; and (v) ensuring
that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established.

From the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee held one meeting and the work performed by the
Audit Committee was summarised as follows:

(1) reviewed the Company's annual results for the Reporting
Period;

(2) reviewed the findings and recommendations from external
auditors;

(3) reviewed the independence and engagement of the external
auditors;

(4) reviewed the audit plan, the development in new accounting
standards and their impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position;

(5) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff in the Group’s accounting and financial

reporting functions; and

(6) reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company the annual results and annual report of the Company for
the Reporting Period, including accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed internal controls and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting
Period comply with applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 16
December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B1 of the Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Yip Koon Shing,
and have three other members, namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund and Mr. Chow Kit Ting.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) making recommendations
to the Board on our policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration; (ii) determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposal with reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

From the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review the
performance and remuneration packages and emoluments of the
Directors and senior management and considered that they are fair
and reasonable during the Reporting Period.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 16
December 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance
with paragraph A5 of the Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Ms. Lin Lili, and have
three other members, namely Mr. Sheng Zijiu, Mr. Yip Koon Shing
and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

The primary duties of our Nomination Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (i) reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (ii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; (i) making recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and re-
appointment of Director; and (iv) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy.

From the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting and the Nomination
Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independence non-executive
Directors, and reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and other
matters of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to ensure sustainable development of its
business operations and to provide a favorable return to its
shareholders.

The declaration and payment of future dividends will be subject
to the decision of the Board having regard to various factors,
including but not limited to the Group’s business operation
and financial performance, profitability, business development,
prospect, capital requirements, and economic outlook. Declaration
and payment of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and
the Articles. The dividend distribution record in the past may not
be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Board in the future. Currently,
the Group does not have a fixed dividend policy and does not have
a pre-determined dividend distribution action.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board thinks
fit and necessary. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that any dividend
will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the
Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

REZEES

ARRQTIR2020F12 A 16 B R ¥ 1 8 Bl BT &%
T ESFRIFEASERR YRR EE S WRIHE
AHERE - RERZTE SRR ESE ] N FT
RARRBRBLER -

RELZEGIFEAMANLL SHE=RHMKE -
BB FNLE BEKEEREERRALE

REZBENTIERAE R (BETRRN) TIIFE:
(Ve EFE0RE  ABRAK: ()FFHBL
FEHITEENB LN (IWREEREFEZHEES
MEERESFSRMEEBEZS : MBI EFS
ZIALBUER -

RETEHEAFHAY REZESC 8T
REFH REZEERNEFTENRE  ABK
MK PEBYFATESNBE LN YR E
FELMEBRRARBNEMEE -

IR 2 BER

ARBREHFMABREHEK ((REBK]) - 5 EER
HEBLENHEER YAERRREHTEDR -

ERRENARKBREBAHEETERE EFEE
EREEZBEZHEREZ  BREETRERREAEENEE
LENMBRE  BNED  EBER AR ?
RBEREZLHERR o Bk SRR IR B IR AEE
FARRARIFTARR - BED KB ERGA
RARERGURTRIEN RS KFHREL
BEAM - B AT AKE I EEE AR EBEK
TMEBLEEENREDIKTTE

EZeNTHRINBERE WESERRAE
HME - AITEEEERBEEBESER  BF R
/RGO PR B BR o BB BRI FE AR B K
R ESERENEBEROR N FEER, %
TEREARPNEAEEITEE RS



Corporate Governance Report
TrEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has delegated the corporate governance function to the
Audit Committee, whose authorities include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2.  to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics and
corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of the
Group's operations with applicable laws and regulations.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors. During the Reporting
Period, the Company had arranged a training for all Directors,
namely Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Chaowei, Mr. Lin Chaowen, Mr.
Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Wei Cunzhuo, Ms. Lin Lili, Mr. Sheng Zijiu,
Mr. Chow Kit Ting, Mr. Yip Koon Shing and Mr. Wong Chun Sek
Edmund. The training session covered a wide range of relevant
topics including Directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate
governance and updates on Listing Rule amendments. In addition,
relevant reading materials have been provided to the Directors for
their studying and reference.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, as its
external auditor for the Reporting Period. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor. During the Reporting Period, the fees payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services provided to the Company were approximately
RMB1.6 million and nil, respectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Reporting
Period, the Directors:

o assessed the reasonableness of preparing the consolidated
financial statements taking into consideration the Group's
financial performance, position, cashflows and liquidity ratios;

e  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates in a prudent, fair and
reasonable manner.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement
of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page
90 to page 97 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control

The Group maintains an effective internal control and risk
management system to safeguard the investment of the Company’s
shareholders and the Group’s assets at all times.

The Directors acknowledge that they have overall responsibility
for overseeing the Company’s internal control, financial control
and risk management system and shall monitor its effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. A review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems will be conducted by the
Board at least annually.
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The Company has established the following risk management
procedures to provide reasonable assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud:

(1) Identify risks: Identify major and significant risks that could
affect the achievement of goals of the Group;

(2) Risk assessment: Assess and evaluate the identified risk
according to its likely impact and the likelihood of occurrence;
and

(3) Risk mitigation: Develop effective control activities to mitigate
the risks.

Risk identification and assessment are performed or updated
annually, and the results of risk assessment, evaluation and
mitigation of each function or operation are documented to
communicate to the Board and management for reviews.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are, however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review on the internal control systems of the Company,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions has been carried out by an independent
consultancy company. The independent consultancy company has
conducted analysis and independent assessment on the adequacy
and the effectiveness of the internal control system and risk
management of the Group, and has submitted the findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Board. Over the
Audit Committee meeting and Board meeting held on 29 March
2021, the Audit Committee and the Board reviewed the report
issued by independent consultancy company and they are of the
view that the internal control measures in place are adequate and
effective to safeguard the interest of Company’s shareholders and
the Group’s assets.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. Taking into
account the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business,
the Board have sufficient capacity to oversee the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control
system and to assess its effectiveness, and accordingly there is no
immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group.

RARRIATREBRERIZRF - AHERER
BREMGFRH A ERE -

(1) FhIRER : BRIFTEFEEXNAEERB KRN
TENEAAR

) R RECSENEROATEZERE
3R Y AT BE M1 AT A AT AR

() REBREFE: REARMEETY BRETFE
[z o

REEn R e SFETREN  SREXE
BHREBRFE FRETFEERSETTE  #
EFENERBEEN-

AT - AN E R R E IR K AR R SRR E
EHEEEMIPERAREERNELERNRR £
AHBEAREBRANBRIRHSEMIFBERE -

BYEMARDHARNRNASIEH RS (B 1EH
5 BERAREHIARERE R #1786 -
BYBEBAREYHASERNDENRGERERE
BRI MRESIMETHONMEBYFMG  FE
MEZZESRETEEIAEERRMEBES -
R2021F3 A9 RITHEZEZEE SR NESE
eent BEXZESREFSEMBILEAMAR
RIBEMRE FERE CHENRBLRFE
MBS ER  AJREARGBRRERAEEMEE
B 2= o

AEET BN EZRE CERAKREXEEH
R MEREREE EFSREREAL
BB TR N A EE S R R MBI
ARHEEARNE At BANKRA AR EBEETA
B AZIRBE ©

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR

41



42

Corporate Governance Report
G EEARE

The Group has implemented a policy on disclosure of inside
information which sets out the procedures and internal controls
for handling and dissemination of inside information. The policy
provides guidelines to the Directors and all relevant employees
of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

(1) define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board to enable them to assess inside
information and make timely disclosures, if necessary;

(2) controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;
and

(3) procedures of communicating with the Group’s stakeholders
in ways which are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Xu Jing was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 20 February 2020 and she is responsible for the
Group’s company secretarial duties and corporate governance
matters in relation to the Company. Ms. Xu possesses the necessary
qualification and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of a company secretary. During the Reporting Period,
Ms. Xu confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. The biographical details of Ms. Xu are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings may be convened on the requisition of one or more
members holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article 64 of
the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary general
meeting. The requirements and procedures are set out above in
the paragraph headed “Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a
retiring Director) shall, unless recommended by the Board for
election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office of the Company or at the Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company. The
period for lodgement of such notices will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least seven days.
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The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders or the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders in the following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e  The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication policy to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s head office. The Company also maintains
a website at www.ds-lace.com where up-to-date information and
updates of the Company’s operations, performances and strategies
are available to public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 16 December 2020, the Company adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association which had been
uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, there had been no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the Reporting
Period.
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COMPANY PROFILE

Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”) is an investment holding company. Fujian
Deyun Technology Co., Ltd.* (f@ @ EZE R B R 2 7)) is the
Group's principal operating subsidiary and it is principally engaged
in manufacturing and sales of lace. Its services and products can be
broadly categorised into two types, namely, (i) dyeing services and
(i) lace manufacturing.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE

The Group presents its first Environmental, Social and Governance
(the “ESG") report. This report captures the ESG performance of
the Group from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

The scope of this report concentrates on the Group's business
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") where the Group
principally derives its revenue. The scope of this report does
not cover the Group’s operations outside the PRC as they are
immaterial and do not have significant environmental and social
impacts.

BASIS FOR COMPILATION OF THE REPORT

This report was prepared with reference to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

*  For identification purpose only
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ESG REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: In compliance with the requirements of materiality
principle defined by the Stock Exchange, the ESG issues considered
by the board of directors (the “Board”) and the ESG working
group, stakeholders communication, identification process
of substantive issues and the matrix of substantive issues are
disclosed in this report, further details of which are set out in the
corresponding part of this report.

Quantitative: Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation tools for quantitative key performance indicators herein
and source of conversion factors are all explained below.

Balance: This report shall provide an unbiased picture of the
Group’s performance during the reporting period and should
avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence the decision or judgment made by the
report readers.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to the data
disclosed in this report shall be consistent.

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting. It oversees the overall governance and progress
of the Group’s ESG management system, policies, commitments,
strategies and objectives. It also participates in the evaluation and
determination of ESG-related risks. The Group implemented ESG
management system and policies to ensure compliance with the
relevant environmental protection laws and regulations, achieve
other ESG objectives and mitigate ESG-related risks. It also formed
a designated ESG working group to oversee and monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of the ESG management system
and policies. The ESG working group reports to the Board regularly.
The Board reviewed the contents disclosed in this report.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT EHhE&E2H

The Group listens to its stakeholders as their contributions are ~ AEEEBFHENER  AABRENERE A
critical to the Group’s long-term success and development. The SEEMNRPKNIEZEZFEZ - ALBRBAS
Group communicates with its stakeholders regularly through  TEREFHEZHESRR U THRESHBEYL
diverse channels to understand their concerns and respond in a  NEHHEIE - FREIAEB R NESHENDE -
timely manner. The table below sets forth the key stakeholders I &z BIANEE BHESG B & I R RESR L EFY -

identified by the Group and provides the basis for identifying ESG
substantive issues of the Group.

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Management responses

HoE HE KRB EEEEE

Shareholders e Actin the best interest of shareholders e  Actively identify attractive business
%2 o RREZEMNRTE opportunities

e Return on investment

o IREMBIWR

e Information disclosure

. EHBE

e Compliance with laws and regulations
o ESPEEER

Governments and regulatory e  Compliance with laws and regulations

bodies o EPEBEER
BT & BB s e Business and economic development

o EBMEBER

e Social contribution

o HEHR

e Fulfilment of tax obligations
e BIIBKBED

e Environment protection

o RIBRE

o EERYEARS NEEE

e Improve profitability

o WERTRE

e Regular information disclosure

. EHENES

e Enhance risk management and internal
controls

o fnoR[E e E IR KA ERIE G

e  Enhance risk management and internal
controls

o fno& AR E IR KA ER I

e  Regular update on relevant laws and
regulations

o THEIMBEEEER

e Pay tax in full and on time

o IR

e Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce
emissions arising from the production
process

o ME ALFZHEURSEERRYIEL
B HER
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Stakeholders

Expectations and concerns

Management responses

oA HEREY B E B fE
Employees e  Employee compensation and benefits e Offer attractive salary and incentives
== o BIHMEEF based on performance
e Training and career development o REFFRHEERSI NOFKKREE
o HIIRBEER e Provide regular trainings for employees
e Safe working environment o RHETFEHIEITHII
o LTERTEIIRIE e Monitor work safety and make sure
employees are familiar with the work
safety handbook
e ERMTHZ2UMREIABIEZD
F
Customers e Quality products and services e Enhance quality control on production
®P o EHEEMERE process and products
e Protection of customers rights o IMREEMBEREmMNEEEN
o REFEPREF e Perform the contract according to law
e HOEEBH
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e Build a long-term reliable supply chain
HpEn o HMEAIE o BURHFEMMHER

Communities/public
HESAE

e Business ethics and credibility

o HEBTHEME

e Environmental protection
o RIFRE
e Employment opportunities

o BEHE

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

e Perform the contract according to law

o HEEH

e Reduce environmental pollutions

o MARIFITH

e Purchase/upgrade facilities to reduce
emissions arising from the production
process

o BE AMEHNRVEEBREFEE
BBERL

e  Provide equal employment opportunities

o RHUFFMREKE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The ESG working group reviews the Group’s operations and
identifies relevant ESG issues and assesses the importance of & Wi HBEEEHHEERRIBENHENEE
related matters to its businesses and stakeholders. The ESG
working group collected information and views from relevant
departments and stakeholders of the Group to identify significant ~ $EZ

EEMMML

MR A EBEEAESGHEE :

ESG issues. The table below sets forth the Group’s significant ESG

issues based on their relative importance:

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
ESGH EIE I HIIMESGH E

The Group’s significant ESG issues

AEBHNEKRESGEE

ESG TR/ NMAEE ARG B #) 8 &0 38 5 1B ESG 74

1 o

ESGTENMEBAKRERBRPI RGN ELREE
HRER - UBBIERESGHE- o TREHIENE

(A) Environmental
(A)EBE

A1 Emissions

ATEERR

A2 Use of Resources

A2 &R FIH

A3 Environment and Natural Resources
ASIRIERKARER

A4 Climate Change
AdRIRE b

Air pollutant emissions

RS R B

Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions
RERE(DRAERE ) BN
Sewage treatment

EIKER R

Hazardous wastes management

BEEREERMER

Energy management
BERE TR
Water management
FKE R

Negative environmental impacts arising from business
operations

EBELEENEHMRELE

Global warming
2IRBE

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERERAT*) —T-F

TEFR

49



50

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HekER®RE

ESG aspects as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide

ESGHR LI5S HIIMWESG HHE

The Group'’s significant ESG issues

REBMWEKXESGEE

(B) Social
(B)itE

B1 Employment
B1{E (&

B2 Health and Safety
B2 ML a

B3 Development and Training
B3 & & Mg

B4 Labour Standards
B4 45 T AR

B5 Supply Chain Management
B5 fH fE 4t & 1

B6 Product Responsibility
B6EmAEE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7RES

B8 Community Investment
B8it[@ix &

Recruitment, promotion, and dismissal Compensation and
benefits

B B R EE I AR R

Equal opportunities, diversity, and anti-discrimination
FERE  ZRERRER

Safety production management
ZEREEER

Employee development and training
B TR RE

Prevention of child and forced labour
fybE T Mg s T

Supply chain management
HrEsEEIR

Product quality and safety
EnEERELE
Customer satisfaction

EFPMEE

Anti-corruption, fraud prevention and anti-money laundering
R&T - REFF R

Corporate social responsibility
rEMHERT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group confirmed —~ E Z2020F 12 A31HIEFE A5 EHBR AR
that it has established appropriate and effective management  FLESGEZEH THEE A AW EERR L AIE
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed ZHE - WHERMBEEANSRFSESGREE S B
that the disclosed contents comply with the requirements of the BT ©

ESG Reporting Guide.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect the
environment and it has implemented policies to reduce
emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of resources.

The Group’s business is subject to various PRC environmental
protection laws and regulations as well as environmental
regulations promulgated by the local governments where the
Group operates. Under the prevailing laws and regulations
in the PRC, the Group is subject to provisions including
Environmental Protection law of the PRC (Ff #E A R # A1
IR (R # %), Promotion of Cleaner Production Law of the
PRC (P 2E A R F BB R 4 E 2 1 %), Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC (FF £ A B $£ A1 B 7K
S5 A7), Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution Law of the PRC (A #E A B L AN B0 BR 555 12 B2 55 22 [y
J& %), and Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution
Law of the PRC (/R A R N [E 28 BE )5 LR B A %).

To ensure compliance with the latest environmental laws
and regulations, the Group has implemented stringent
environmental protection policies setting out its goals and
policies in relation to environmental matters. The Group has
also installed air filtration facilities and sewage treatment
system to reduce emissions. The Group obtained a certificate
for complying with the requirement of GB/T 24001 — 2016/
ISO14001:2015 for its environmental management system on
11 October 2018.

The Group is required under the PRC law to obtain a valid
pollutant discharge permit for its production facilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained all relevant pollutant discharge permit and it
complied with all applicable PRC environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects and had not been
subject to any material penalty in relation to environmental
protection.

BRI

AEBARERERBENEM A BB
KRV BERRRERERNBRE -

REBEERKAETZATBERRREER
FOER - ARIRAPY & & P 3 77 U PR A e
MIRBIER - RIFBITHBOERIER - &
SEZPEARAMBIRFREE  PEA
RAMBBREEREE PEARKNE
KBRPEE PEARKNERRERRE)S
AUaERPEARKNBEERERY SR
REPDEMIRAAIR

ABRERETENREBEZRER  A5BECE
MG MR IBIRERE - HIHIRIBEEEAR
A EEREE AEETLRERBER
HRIFKERRGUR DR - AEEER
2018F 10 MM BB EREEERGESET
4 GB/T 24001 — 2016/1S014001:2015 Z 5K &Y

277 5%
mohRg °©

REPEZER AEEASHEERERE
BRESRY PR

BE2020F12A83MBHIEFE - AEBEE R
BETEMRERNSEMBENGTIE  LWEMRE
ERNFTEHAHCETHRAAEERATRERRERE
B BUYEZINAMERSRESENEKR

=2
=N ©

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR

51



52

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE g NEBRE

A.1 Emissions

Emissions from the Group’s production process include
air pollutants, sewage and solid waste.

In order to reduce the level of pollution, the Group
has installed air filtration facilities to filter air pollutants
generated from coal-burning-boiler and a sewage
treatment system to collect and process sewage to
reduce hazardous substance in the sewage generated
during the dyeing process and in accordance with
different national standards (GB 13271-2014 for
air and GB 4287-2012 for wastewater) in the PRC,
which are comparable to corresponding international
standards. An online real-time monitoring system
has also been installed to connect such facilities to
environmental authority of the PRC government,
ensuring that the Group can satisfy with the pollutant
emission standard at all times. The Group has been
spending continuous effort to enhance its equipment
and facilities for satisfying the increasingly stringent
environmental protection requirement. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not exceed
any maximum pollutants emission standards under the
monitoring system and maintained a clean record with
the government.

Going forward, for continued compliance with the
requirement of Fujian government, the Group planned
to upgrade its boilers to generate heat from natural gas
for its dyeing services, which would significantly reduce
the amount of air pollutants emitted.

To complement with the use of natural-gas-boiler,
the Group also planned to acquire some crucial waste
treatment equipment, including (i) a flue gas purifying
treatment machine which can transform and filter the
concentrated smoke produced by its natural-gas-boiler
to less harmful substances and water vapour, and (ii)
a sewage sludge drying equipment which can dry the
harmful vapours emitted by the dyeing cylinder into
pieces of sludge for easier handling and disposal. These
new machineries allow the Group to control the amount
of pollutants emitted to the environment in a more
stable way and fulfil the discharge standard stipulated
by the PRC government.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Besides, the Group has a number of vehicles for
transportation of materials and products, which
generate exhaust gas from the combustion of petrol
and diesel. The Group'’s emission reduction measures for
vehicles include:

(i)

turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in use;

plan routes ahead of time to reduce route
repetition and optimise fuel consumption;

undergo maintenance service regularly to ensure
optimal engine performance and fuel use; and

optimise operational procedures to increase
efficiency and reduce vehicle idling rates

Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, air
pollutants generated from the use of the Group’s
coal-burning-boiler contributed to the emission
of 20.21 kg of nitrogen oxides (NOy), 20.75 kg
of sulphur oxides (SO,) and 3.38 kg of respiratory
suspended particles (PM), and air pollutants
generated from the use of the Group’s motor
vehicles contributed to the emission of 101.02
kg of nitrogen oxides (NO,), 0.18 kg of sulphur
oxides (SO,) and 9.72 kg of respiratory suspended
particles (PM). The Group targets that the amounts
of air pollutants generated from the Group’s coal-
burning-boiler and motor vehicles in 2021 will not
be significantly higher than 2020.
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(i) GHG emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group’s activities contributed to 43,162.72 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons)
GHG emissions. The table below sets forth details

(ii)

BERBEBHL

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE - &K
EEEB R EE43,162.720F =
aitmeEs (—8tHm Bl —
St-akaaiedy) HaE
REEHM - TREAIVAEEIZEE

of the Group’s GHG emissions by scope:

0 R ER BN -

For the year ended
31 December 2020

BZ20205F
12831MBLEE
Scope of GHG emissions Unit Emission
BERBHEREER B BHE
Scope 1 Direct emissions
EE1EEFER
Consumption of coal during the use of tCOze 27,267.03
coal-burning-boiler WS biRE =
KR S0 18 50 R B AR R 0 PR OB A
Consumption of petrol and diesel for tCO%e 29.30
mobile vehicles 7= o e
B B 0 RSB AR
Use of refrigerant tCO%e 90.50
B BIE A WS biRE 2
Scope 2 Indirect emissions
EE 2 BN
Purchased electricity tCO%e 15,661.26
SMNBE N WE_SALiRE 2
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions
EE3HMEEER
Paper waste disposal tCOze 0.96
FEREE WE_ SRS 2
Water consumption tCO,e 113.27
FKE WE_SAbiRE 2
Business air travel tCO,e 0.40
75 2= ik 7= o e
Total GHG emissions tCO,e 43,162.72
BERBHREE Wo—SE{mEE
Intensity tCO,e/employee (note 3) 92.03
RnE WMo_E{mEE RS (ME3)
tCO.e/product (tonnes) (note 4) 3.34
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Notes:

(1)  GHG emission data is presented in terms of
carbon dioxide equivalent and are based on, but
not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and
the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, the latest
released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis.

(2) The above emission data does not include the
removal of CO, contributed by recycling of paper.

(3) As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 469 full-
time employees in total. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

(4)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group produced/processed 12,935.68 tonnes of
products. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Scope 1 — Direct emissions

Scope 1 direct emissions are generated from the
use of the Group's coal-burning-boiler, motor
vehicles and refrigerant. The Group is taking the
proactive measures to reduce these emissions and
these measures are set out in the section headed
“A.1 Emissions” above.

Scope 2 — Indlirect emissions

Scope 2 indirect emissions are generated from the
use of purchased electricity. Measures to reduce
these emissions are set out in the section headed
“A.2 Use of resources” below.

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions

Scope 3 other indirect emissions are generated
from paper consumption, water consumption
and business air travel. The Group will only
choose air travel when considered necessary.
Teleconferencing and network conferencing are
the Group’s preferred means of communication
to reduce the frequency of travel. The measures
to reduce paper and water consumption are set
out in the section headed “A.2 Use of resources”
below.
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(iiij) Sewage discharge

Sewage is generated during the Group’s dyeing
process. Sewage is treated and discharged in
accordance with the Discharge Standard of Water
Pollutant for Dyeing and Finishing of Textile
Industry (%7 % 22 B T 3 K5 R MEE U %E)).
Measures to reduce hazardous substance in the
sewage generated during the dyeing process are
set out in the section headed “A.1 Emissions”
above. The table below sets forth details of the
Group's sewage discharge for the year ended 31
December 2020:

(iii)

JTIKHEH

REBERREREPESEETK -
BFIBRIE B R B T EKTEY
BERUZ2E) BRI R HE K - B
WAL RIBRIEEFEKNEE
ME R RS EXX A1 BER] —
Bio TREIALEEE20205F
12 A31 BIEFERSKBERGEES

For the year ended
31 December 2020

BZE2020F

12A3MBLEE

Sewage discharge Unit Intensity

VERAE: Fid B R

CODer Mol 52,/ Ft 29.89

Ammonia nitrogen Mg/l 27,/ F+ 3.89
2R

Total nitrogen Mg/l 27,/ F+ 4.66
BAR

The Group targets that the amounts of the Group’s
sewage discharge in 2021 will not be significantly
higher than 2020.

(iv) Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

Hazardous waste of the Group includes waste
mineral oil, effluent and packaging materials
contaminated by dye. Non-hazardous waste of the
Group includes residual coal, sludge, paper and
packaging materials.

Apart from the above air pollutants and sewage
treatments, the Group has adopted practices in
relation to the separation, collection, storage
and disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste in order to minimise environmental
impact. In particular, the Group has engaged
external service providers qualified by the relevant
environmental authorities of the PRC government
for (i) purification, transportation and disposal
of the sludge generated from waste water; and
(i) collection and disposal of the residual coal
produced from our coal-burning boiler for further
recycling purpose.
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REBE TR AR & B E mE R
HUE T - 245

The Group also adopted certain measures in
relation to consumption of paper and packaging
products including:

e Make use of computer system for e FASKRERSGET RIS
general transaction notification and data BAREIRES
transmission;

e Use both sides of paper as much as possible; e mUREFAEREA

e Dispose of waste packaging boxes as s BEESEMIEAIEKEZE
recyclable waste; and YIRIE : &

e Increase the use of recycled paper. o IEHN{E B o

HZE2020F12A31HIEFE - &K
SEMRKEFRNBEEEEEER
EEBEZEYNRFNES  RAE
ENBEAER202ERIEER
BEBFZYNELES -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group did not receive any complaints or warnings
on disposal of its hazardous and non-hazardous
waste and the Group targets to reduce the
amounts of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
generated in 2021.

TREHAEEEZE2020F12 A
BNTHEFEMNEEREZEEY

The table below sets forth details of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste of the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2020: EIER
Types of hazardous and For the year ended
non-hazardous waste Unit 31 December 2020
BZ20205

BFEREBEEEYESR B 12A31HLEE
Waste mineral oil tonnes 0.89
RERE Y g
Effluent tonnes 0.53
y57K g
Packaging materials contaminated by dye tonnes 0.66
AT R BEM R g
Residual coal tonnes 797.81
R i
Sludge tonnes 696.63
e 72
Paper and packaging materials tonnes 200.00
HLSR R B AR g
Total waste tonnes 1,696.52
BEEEY ]
Intensity tonnes/employee 3.62
RnE W, ES

tonnes/product (tonnes) 0.13

W, & (WE)
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A.2 Use of resources

The Group strives to minimise the impact of its business
operations on the environment by adopting measures to
conserve energy during the manufacturing and dyeing.
Such measures include practices to limit electricity
and water wastage, guidelines on permitted usage of
electronic equipment by employees and utilisation of
equipment which is energy-efficient.

Energy management

The Group actively implements the concept of energy-
saving, emission reduction, and maintain efficient
use of resources through following the methods and
measures for energy saving. Through practicing active
management control in its operations, the Group strives
to prevent pollution by using environmentally friendly
materials, producing green products, and implementing
technological innovations. The Group has also
implemented strategies to reduce the consumption of
petrol and diesel (see section headed “A.1 Emissions”)
and achieve electricity conservation and efficient
use of electricity. The strategies to achieve electricity
conservation and efficient use of electricity are as
follows:

° Conserve electricity and turn off unnecessary
lighting power;

e Minimise energy consumption when equipment is
not in production;

e Avoid premature start-up of equipment and idling
of equipment; and

e Assure the cooling effect of air conditioning
equipment by proper maintenance.
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The table below sets forth details of energy consumption T&REFAEEEFE20205F12 318
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020: IEFEMEIRERERE -

For the year ended

Types of energy consumption Unit 31 December 2020
BZ2020F
BERHEESE B 12A31HLEEE

Direct energy consumption

HEEERERE
— Petrol and diesel litre 12,324
—h Rge 7+
Intensity litre/employee 26.28
BE #EE
litre/product (tonnes) 0.95
# . E & (W)
Indirect energy consumption
MR EE
— Purchased electricity kilowatt hours 18,717,889
—4HNEE FRE
Intensity kilowatt hours/employee 39,910.21
BE TRE EE
kilowatt hours/product (tonnes) 1,447.00
FEEEH (W)
Water management FKEE
The Group consumes water during its production REBTAEBERP R AR IHEFEK -
process and for office use. In addition to the aforesaid M Falt B EE)5B BRI IESN - R E IR
measures related to the discharge of sewage, the Group FEEEEEENEEHKHNEE I
also encourages all employees to develop a habit of e LA TN EKEE i

conscious water use and implements the following
water-saving measures:

e Formulate specific guidelines and measures for o REBAKEIEE - HEFT AL
water conservation based on the characteristics of /KIS MG &
water consumption; and

e Inspect and maintain water storage, distribution, o TEHHEK  BIKKRAKEEET
and consumption facilities regularly, and promptly BE R gEE - R ERRRA
solve problems identified to prevent wastage of B7 bR ERERE -

water resources.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group HE2020F12A31MALLFE  KAEH
did not encounter any issues in water sourcing. TEKIR 7 EBE AT (] FE RE o
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The table below sets forth details of water consumption
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020:

TRENAEBEEHZE 2020412 A31H
LIEFERIKFERFS

For the year ended

Unit 31 December 2020
HZE2020F
By 12831RLEEE
Water tonnes 135,377
7K U
Intensity tonnes/employee 288.65
BE W, &S
tonnes/product (tonnes) 10.47
Wi, EE (W)

A.3 The environment and natural resources

The Group recognises its responsibility to minimise
the negative environmental impacts arising from its
business operations and it is committed to achieving
the goal of environmental sustainability. The Group
regularly assesses the environmental risks of its business
operations, adopts preventive measures to reduce
risks, and ensures compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The significant impact of activities of the
Group on the environment and the actions taken to
manage them are detailed in the sections headed “A.1
Emissions” and “A.2 Use of resources”.

A.4 Climate change

Management of the Group regularly monitors and
identifies climate change risk that is relevant to the
Group’s business operations. The climate-related risks
can be divided into two major categories: (i) risks related
to the transition to a lower-carbon economy and (ii)
risks related to the physical impacts of climate change.

(i) Transition risks

Transitioning to a lower-carbon economy may
entail extensive policy, legal, technology, and
market changes to address mitigation and
adaptation requirements related to climate
change. Depending on the nature, speed, and
focus of these changes, transition risks may
pose varying levels of financial and reputational
risk to the Group. Policy actions around climate
change could continue to evolve. Transition risks
related to policy change include any risk that the
environmental laws and regulations in China may
be amended from time to time and changes in
those laws and regulations may cause us to incur
additional costs in order to comply with the more
stringent rules.
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(ii)  Physical risks (i) YEEkE

Physical risks may have financial implications for
the Group, such as direct damage to assets and
indirect impacts from supply chain disruption. The
Group's financial performance may be affected
by changes in water availability, sourcing, and
quality, or extreme temperature changes affecting
the premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
encounter any difficulty in water availability,
sourcing and quality, and it did not encounter
any extreme temperature changes affecting the
premises, operations, supply chain, transport
needs, and employee safety that materially and
adversely affecting business operation.

Moreover, the business of the Group as a dyeing
service provider, has been categorised as one of
the heavily polluting industries and may cause
negative impact on the climate. In particular,
the Group use coal-burning-boiler during our
production process, that could emit air pollutants
causing further warming of the planet.

The management recognised its social
responsibility on climate change, and its role
in assessing and managing these climate-
related risks. As such, the Group has planned to
implement “coal-to-gas” transformation of its
heating equipment from coal-burning-boiler to
natural-gas-burning boiler by the end of 2021.
The management believes the natural-gas-burning
boiler could significantly reduce the amount of air
pollutants to be emitted in production, and will
continue to assess and manage the climate-related
risks posed to the Group in the future.
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B. SOCIAL

B.1 Employment and labour practices

Employees are one of the Group’s important assets. The
Group provides a safe, fair and harmonious working
environment for its employees. By upholding values of
trust, respect and compassion, the Group believes that
it will boost employees’ sense of belonging and retain
top talents.

The Group has a recruitment policy in place. New
employees are recruited according to business needs
and upon request from relevant departments. The
Group generally recruits its workforce through online
platforms, regional job fairs and referrals by existing
employees. The candidates will be examined based
on their relevant experiences, skills, knowledge, and
integrity. According to the recruitment policy, the
Group encourages its employees to refer potential
candidates, rewards would be given if the candidates
are successfully employed.

Each employee of the Group will receive an employee
handbook which stipulates the rights and obligations
of them. Basic rules such as dormitory rules, canteen
management rules, factory access rules and resignation
procedures will be included in the handbook and allow
the employees to have constant references.

The Group also regularly reviews and updates its
employment policy to ensure the applicability of its
terms and condition and compliance with the latest
labour laws and regulations. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group complied with the Labour
Law of the PRC and did not experience any significant
labour disputes or any disruption to business operations
due to labour disputes. In addition, the Group did
not experience any difficulties in the recruitment and
retention of experienced core staff or skilled personnel.
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Employee benefits and welfare

The Group’s employees are generally remunerated by
way of fixed salary. The Group utilises an appraisal
system for its employees and considers the appraisal
results of individual employees when conducting their
salary review and determining the amounts of bonuses.
The team manager, person-in-charge of the factories
and human resources department will be responsible
for conducting performance appraisal. The Group's
employees are also entitled to a number of subsidies,
including but not limited to job-nature based subsidy,
performance-based bonus, share options and paid
leave.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group made timely and adequate social insurance
contributions and housing provident fund contributions
for its qualified employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations.

Labour standards

The Group’s recruitment policy sets out its recruitment
procedures and standard. The Group strictly follows and
regularly reviews such policy. The Group would carry
out background checks to authenticate information
provided by job applicants to confirm that they are at
least 18 years old. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group did not have non-compliance in
relation to laws and regulations regarding prevention
of child and forced labour. The Group also ensures that
the working hours of its employees are reasonable and
comply with the relevant laws and regulations and its
employees would have sufficient rest periods.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for employees
in respect of recruitment, job advancement, training
and development, etc. Employees are not discriminated
against or deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition, disability,
gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation, political status,
age and any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. Employees shall not act in discriminatory
manner or they can be subject to disciplinary actions.
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(@)

(ii)

Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group’s principal raw materials are colouring
dyes and additives. Although they are not
hazardous chemicals as defined under the Catalog
of Hazardous Chemicals (2015) /& B 1t 2 @
B £%(2015)h)), they can cause accidents and/or
adverse impact on the environment unless they
are properly stored and handled. In order to
ensure the safe storage of the dyes and additives
and to minimise the risk of the occurrences of
any accidents, the Group has adopted certain
measures in relation to the storage and handling
of dyes and additives including:

e Storage facilities for dyes and additives must
be (i) in specialised space or storage rooms;
(i) managed by designated personnel; (iii)
labelled clearly; and (iv) kitted with sufficient
fire safety equipment;

o Personnel and departments which handle
different dyes and additives must strictly
comply with the relevant management
regulations, operational procedures and fire
safety guidelines; and

o Specialised containers used for the storage
of dyes and additives must be labelled
accordingly.
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(iif)

The Group has established a series of safety
guidelines, rules and procedures for different
aspects of its production activities, including fire
safety, operation safety, warehouse safety, work-
related injuries and emergency and evacuation
procedures to promote occupational health and
safety and to ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Also, the Group provides
suitable and necessary protection equipment to its
employees, i.e., earplugs, protective suits and mask
to ensure their safety during work. Furthermore,
the Group will inspect its production facilities from
time to time in order to ensure that such facilities
are safe for use.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complied in all material respects with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC relating
to health and work safety and the Group did not
record any material accidents. The Group was
not involved in any material violations of health
and safety laws or regulations in the PRC and it
was not subject to material litigations, claims,
administrative sanctions or penalties with regard to
work safety and labour related issues. There were
also no work-related fatalities or serious injuries,
and no days were lost due to work injury for the
three years ended 31 December 2020.

Development and training

In order to increase the overall competitiveness
of workforce, the Group strives to ensure that its
employees are equipped with the required skill
and safety knowledge when performing their
duties. It has been the Group’s policy to provide
all-round training to its employees. Usually it
includes induction training with regard to factory
rules, production flow and use of machineries
which is held by manager or director; on-board
training on the usage of machines and safety
procedures required by its experienced senior staff
for one to two months; and sometimes education
opportunities depending on the job function of
the employees.
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The Group will also arrange management skills
training to its potential mid-level staffs to increase
their ability on management. Newly recruited
employees are required to attend a safety training
course so that they can be familiarised with
the safety standards which they are required to
meet during production and in their handling of
production equipment. The Group will also hold
events occasionally for its employees or allow its
employees to join the trade fairs or seminars in
difference provinces or cities, in order for them to
catch up with market trend.

Set forth below is the number and percentage
of training hours completed by the Group's
employees by gender and employee category for
the year ended 31 December 2020:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

REBTHAEPER TRHER
RIEF - RITHEREE ) -
BeEBUANRF R E2HEIIRE -
ENEEBENEERBRERRIELE
REFATENRZERE - AEH
NI REERTEE  NBFE
B2METRENSBTRRENE
HEEE LG AR I5E

AR AEZE2020F12 A31 B IE4F
iR RIEBERESHAER
EEEAMEIIRE RGBS
BZE2020F12831BLEE

% of training

hours by
employee
Employee category Male Female Total category
RIESES
22 K45 5F 3
EEER £ z et RENBE DL
Training hours  Training hours  Training hours
3% A R Y 3% 3 R 2 3% 5 B B
Senior management 648 36 684 8.3%
SREEE
Middle management 792 216 1,008 12.2%
hREEE
Other employees 4,644 1,940 6,584 79.5%
Hibg g
Total 6,084 2,192 8,276 100.0%
Bt
% of training hours
by gender 73.5% 26.5% 100.0%
R B & 2 H 1 F
RN EDL
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(iv)  Employee distribution

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 469
full-time employees in total and they are employed
for the Group's business operations in the PRC.
The Group had no part-time employees. The
staff turnover rate during the year ended 31
December 2020 was within a reasonable level.
Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s
employees as at 31 December 2020 by gender and
age group:

B.2 Operating practices

(i) Supply chain management

Most of the Group’s major suppliers are based in
the PRC. The Group relies on the support from a
wide variety of suppliers to provide raw materials
and production equipment to carry out its business
operations. It is very important for the Group to
choose its suppliers carefully as such decision
would directly affect the quality of its products
and services.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
environmental, social and governance principles
that the Group has adopted into the management
of its business operations. In order to ensure that
the components and raw materials meet the
requisite safety and quality standards, the Group
adopts stringent criteria in supplier selection
(including but not limited to whether they provide
high quality raw materials, whether they maintain
a high standard on environmental protection
and comply with relevant laws on environmental
issues, whether price is comparable to market rate
and location of their factories) and continuously
monitors existing suppliers on an annual basis,
based on criteria such as product quality, product
defect ratio, delivery punctuality ratio and
responsiveness.
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(ii)

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is
one of the key criteria for us to evaluate the
suppliers. The Group highly recognises suppliers
that can provide international recognitions
and certificates, including but not limited to
(i) 1SO 14001, recognising the environmental
management system in place, (ii) Bluesign®
certificate, recognising textile chemical providers
and the products are responsible, sustainable and
is greener textile chemicals for the environment,
or (iii) Standard 100 of OEKO-Tex® recognition,
mainly on product safety, which also attest to
socially and environmentally sound

conditions in production facilities.

If the aggregate marks of the supplier under the
Group’s annual evaluation (i) equals to or is more
than 80 marks, then the supplier will remain in our
list of approved suppliers for the following year;
(i) less than 80 marks, the Group would ask the
suppliers to make corresponding amendments and
conduct the evaluation again after three months. If
its marks under the evaluation equals to or is more
than 80 marks, the supplier will remain in the list
of approved suppliers for the following year; or (iii)
equals to or less than 70 marks, the supplier will
be removed from the list of approved suppliers.

Product responsibility

Product assurance and recall

The Group believes that its reputation for product
quality, timely delivery and customer service has

contributed significantly to the success of its
business operations.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

(ii)

HEARTEBINAREBHK
BEREREREETRTERFEE
HETHEESEME - RRE#
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ1fﬁmﬁ%hﬁz
— o REE S E R e e E
A & Eﬂﬁifﬁ @%ﬁETﬁE
RORA H TIRRE B XSO
14001 - (iR A A4k L 2 m it ERS
MEGABBEE AHENARE
R AT B 45 f51b 2 5 K Bluesign® 32
FoRNEZASRERELEN
“%ié SHEAt e RIRIE R AR
#) OEKO-Tex® fZ#£ 100 °

M EAEARBNFEFE T
RERDNHERIERE0D - 8l
S EERFSRET AZEHRE
EARE (NERSD  AEEE
EREEHELERNRE  YHE=
EARBENE WEEFETR

DERIEN80H  HEEEKSE
GREY AN ZEHEEEE ¢ i)
EZRHER70D ZEEFEH

TEREERESK -

EREF
/XUD/??/LL/\
AEEHE FAEEREREE -

EBINREPRIGHBEHER
KWBEBIRZ o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE g NREBRE

The Group adopts strict quality control measures
which includes four stages, (i) initial quality check
for raw materials, (i) checking against prototype
of greige fabrics according to the specification
from customers, such as pattern and dimension
of our lace and obtain approval from customers
before bulk production; (iii) inspecting finished
lace against any snagged yarns to ensure the
number of weaving defects is below the agreed
level and (iv) conduct various types of test to
ensure appropriate elasticity of the products. In the
event of anomalies discovered during inspection,
the production staff would instantly report to the
manager of the quality control department or to
the general manager of the Group, so that the
problem can be solved as quickly as possible.

The Group is currently using the total quality
management system which can monitor the quality
of products in an all-rounded respective. The
Group’s quality management system complies with
the standard of GB/T 19001-2016/1SO9001:2015
Quality Management Systems Requirements
and the Group was awarded a certificate for the
design, and production of warp knitted lace (&t
SR 1ti2). Also, the Group fully complies with
domestic industry standards such as FZ/T 73027-
2016 Textile Industry Standard (Warp Knitted Lace)
of the PRC* (Fp 2 A R H MBI %7 417 2 1R % (8
KSR 1E32)). The Group has also been accredited
with, among others, ISO 9001:2015 for quality
management system for its design and production
of lace and OEKO-TEX® Confidence in Textiles
STANDARD 100, which shows that the quality of
the Group’s products can meet the international
stringent requirements on product safety. In
respect of dyeing services, the Group has obtained
ISO14001:2015 for its environmental management
system.

For identification purpose only
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The Group also implements a series of repair and
maintenance procedures of its machinery and
equipment. The production team conducts basic
routine checks on machinery and equipment
regularly and detailed checks annually. The
production team maintains detailed record on
repair and maintenance work and the Group has
its our own hardware warehouse to increase the
efficiency of repairing.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group did not have material non-compliance with
laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and receive any product return request, nor had it
received any complaint from its customers on the
quality of products, and no customers made any
material warranty claims against the Group.

Intellectual property rights and privacy protection

To protect its intellectual property rights, the
Group has entered into confidentiality and non-
compete agreements with members of senior
management, employees of the design and
development team and technical support team
and/or other employees who have access to
secrets or confidential information of the Group.
The confidentiality and non-compete agreements
prohibit such members of senior management
and/or the relevant employees from (i) disclosing
confidential information of the Group such
as technology know-how and trade secrets
acquired or generated during the course of their
employment with the Group; and (ii) engaging
in activities and/or business that may potentially
compete with the Group.

The Group has also established appropriate
guidelines for its employees to regulate the use
of personal information, safeguard confidential
information and avoid leakage of customers’ and
suppliers’ privacy.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
of any intellectual property rights nor material
breach of data privacy.
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(iiij) Anti-corruption

The Group has implemented anti-corruption
guides, policies and procedures for its employees
to follow. A reporting mechanism is in place for
any corruption or suspected corruption behaviour.
Any contravention to these anti-corruption guides
and policies identified with solid evidence, the
Group will terminate the engagement with the
contravened parties immediately and if needed,
report to relevant regulatory authorities. The
Group also provides trainings to its employees
from time to time to ensure that they comply and
familiar with the anti-corruption guides, policies
and procedures of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social responsibility
and allocates resources to satisfy the needs of the
community. In achieving its social corporate goal in
volunteering in the community, the Group has actively
endeavoured in funding the development of less
developed cities in the PRC by making donations to
various charitable organisations occasionally.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
focused on environmental protection as well as cultural
and sport promotion. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on community needs and increase its
investment in community. The Group has contributed a
reasonable amount of time to environmental protection
and cultural and sport promotion.
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The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of the
Company the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 January 2019. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 13 January 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
provides dyeing services as well as sale and manufacture of lace
to its customers. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW, FUTURE PROSPECT AND
DEVELOPMENT

The review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 and the discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISK FACTORS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The following sets out the principal risks and uncertainties
encountered by the Group in its business operations:

The Group as a dyeing service provider has been categorised
as one of the heavily polluting industries. Any failure to
comply with environmental regulations would expose the
Group to penalties, fines, suspensions or actions in other
forms.

The Group’s business of providing dyeing services has been
categorised as one of the heavily polluting industries and its
operations are subjected to the environmental protection laws
and regulations promulgated by the PRC government authorities.
These laws and regulations require the Group to adopt effective
measures to control and properly dispose of waste water and
other environmental pollutants. The Group could be exposed to
penalties, fines, suspensions or actions in other forms if we fail to
comply with these laws and regulations.
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The Group derives a significant portion of revenue from
customers in Fujian and Guangdong. Failure to retain
business relationships with existing customers or secure
new business may materially affect the Group’s results and
financial performance.

The Group’s revenue is concentrated in Fujian and Guangdong.
The Group mainly provides lace manufacture and dyeing services
on an order-by-order basis, there is no assurance that our business
relationship with our customers in Fujian and Guangdong
will continue in the future. The Group’s results of operations,
profitability and liquidity may be materially and adversely affected
if it is unable to secure new orders from existing customers in
Fujian and Guangdong or fail to procure similar level of business
from new customers from other cities or countries on comparable
commercial terms to offset the loss of revenue from customers in
Fujian and Guangdong.

The Group’s business depends on a stable and adequate
supply of raw materials and the Group does not enter into
any long-term agreements with suppliers, fluctuation in the
price of raw materials may affect the Group’s cost of sales
and adversely affect business operation and profitability.

Since the Group does not enter into any long-term agreement
with its raw material suppliers, if any interruption, reduction or
termination of the supply of raw materials occurs, or the price of
the raw material increase due to an increase in demand, the Group
has to bear the risk of such fluctuations and may not be able to
shift such risk to its customers.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of events occurring after the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted for 4.4%
(2019: 3.7%) and 16.2% (2019: 15.9%) of the total revenue,
respectively.

Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2020 accounted
for 17.1% (2019: 13.8%) and 56.1% (2019: 52.2%) of the total
purchases, respectively.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationships with employees,
customers and suppliers by making frequent communications with
them to understand their needs. The Group provides safe work
environment, competitive remuneration, good welfare benefits
and continuous training for its employees. During the year ended
31 December 2020, there were no material disputes between the
Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Group has complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
The Group also complied with (i) the requirements under the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") for the disclosure
of information and corporate governance; and (i) the ordinances
relating to occupational safety for the interest of its employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
Details of such are set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 98 to 101.
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged as securities for current bank
borrowings and bills payables as at 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 25 May 2021 (Tuesday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 20 May 2021 (Thursday) to 25
May 2021 (Tuesday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 18 May
2021 (Tuesday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2021 (Tuesday).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
except for the IPO, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report. The distributable reserves
of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group made donations of RMB100,000 during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB200,000).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years is set out in the section
headed “Four-Year Financial Summary” of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

RETEHEAREBR2E FRERAFEEESIN
ARARREEANEARMERE HENEMD
EAARR EHES °

feé 1 I T 5 0 Ik 1o ¥
ARRBEE2020F12A31 B IEFEHFEE

HRAFRGARRBER - ARF D IR
BENERE B IMRMEIS

Bi G w R R E R

RESFN BEREASBEAAANESMES
EABBAL KB -

HERN

HZE2020F12A831BLFE  AEEEL B
AR# 100,000 (20194F = AR #200,0007T) °

EEAEY
HZE2020F 128318 IEFE  ME X TFE

BHEEBNELERRRRXMBRAREHREMNE
REDEBOEHL

PR

AEENBENETBRFENCD IEXEARE
ERBENHREHNAFRIIFHBEHE] 45 -
AREL TERERRGEPBRREP —#5 -



Directors’ Report
ERGHE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December

2020 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Mingiang (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Chaowei (Appointed as Director on 17 February 2020
and re-designated as Executive Director on 20 March 2020)
Mr. Lin Chaowen (Appointed as Director on 17 February 2020
and re-designated as Executive Director on 20 March 2020)
Mr. Lin Bingzhong (Appointed as Director on 17 February 2020
and re-designated as Executive Director on 20 March 2020)
Mr. Wei Cunzhuo (Appointed as Director on 17 February 2020
and re-designated as Executive Director on 20 March 2020)
Ms. Lin Lili (Appointed as Director on 17 February 2020
and re-designated as Executive Director on 20 March 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Sheng Zijiu (Appointed on 16 December 2020)

Mr. Chow Kit Ting (Appointed on 16 December 2020)
Mr. Yip Koon Shing (Appointed on 16 December 2020)
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (Appointed on 16 December 2020)

In accordance with the Articles, all the existing Directors will retire
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the members of the Board and relationship
between members of the Board are set out in the section headed

EE

HZE2020F 12 A31BEFEREEAFHRAL
RNRARNEERA

HITES

MERBEE (F/EF)

MERB L (R2020F2 B 17 EEZEAES
I 20205F3 A20 B AEABITES)

MEAX AL (R2020F2 A17TAEZEBES
W 20205F3 A20 B AEABITES)

MEELE(R2020F2 17T RZTEESE
IR 20205E3 A20 B AEABITES)

BIFNEE (R2020F2 A17TARZEAES
W 20205E3 A20 B AEABITES)

MFF 2L+ (R2020F2 B 17BEZ T A=ES -
IR 20205E3 A20 B AEABITES)

BIYFYTES

BT NEE(R2020F 12 B 16 HEZR )
FEHER 4+ (A202056F 12 B16 HEZRT)
B E (2020512 B 16 HEZRT)
EHEBRE (202012 B 16 BEZT)

REBAR 2RRIEESREERREFAE
EREINEERMEEBEEES -

EERSAEEEREFNT

ExeENBERFBEREFEXNE ZRNBK
HRAFRIBEERGREREREAE] 8-

"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this

annual report.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Group’s employee benefit expenses and manpower
service expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020 (including
the emoluments of the Directors and senior management and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group) are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. The emoluments payable to the Directors are determined
according to various factors, including but not limited to their
performance, market conditions and the financial conditions of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Directors
have waived any emoluments. The remuneration of the senior
management of the Group for the reporting period falls within the
following band:

BEBANAXIRADERBRHEMAX -
BRESH=

HZE2020F12A31HLEEE  AEENEER
FRZRANERREASZ (RREAEEES 5
LERERALZESFMATOEFH) FBHALR
FHRIZAVHREN T - BNESHIS HIRIE
ZERZET BEETRAERE MHRER
EEMBEMT - B E2020F12 A31 B ILFE -
BMEEEREAAMNE RBESHE 258K
BREBEFHERUTHER

Number of

senior

management

Remuneration band FrENE E EREEEAY
Not more than HKD 1,000,000 % AR ¥ 1,000,000 7T 5

DIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with our Company
up to a term of three years commencing from 16 December 2020,
which may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
letter of appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment or
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Laws of
the Cayman Islands) which he/she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company

EERESTRAERKG - HE
RO REBEEESNEZERKXE

REAFHRAY RARBEFRESTHRAERAE
RAHEEETEEEE (ERREHLRBMEFEE
XVER) MDA REEZE T HEACRE
EHMBERPIEXVEBE7 RSN AMNEARR
AN A ERSAR (BERERE S MIEK
PIBRIGRREF R RIEA R AR R
BREFEPEGRIEI2GEARALRFFEN
BrMuEsE AR  IRBERETRIAAGE
NE) R FrEER FOR RN T

(i) RAERQBHERS

Percentage of
Number of shareholding in
shares held the Company

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)
BEW JiAZ VNS )
BHER ERBESL
EEnA 54 REmtE (Hiez1) (BE#)
Mr. Lin Mingiang (Note 2 and 3) Interest in a controlled corporation 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Interest held jointly with other persons
MR (W2 % 3) R EE S
HEMATHERFE#ER
Mr. Lin Bingzhong (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MERBIELE (H5E3) HEMATHRFE#ER
Mr. Lin Chaowei (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MERE S (H17%3) HEMATHRFE#ER
Mr. Lin Chaowen (Note 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MEBBSCIHE (17F3) HEMATHFRFE#ER
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(ii) Interest in the ordinary shares of
associated corporation

Name of Director

EEfSA

Name of associated

corporation

HEEE A

(i) REBZEEBRNER

Capacity/nature
of interest

B0 ERME

Percentage of
shareholding in

Mr. Lin Mingiang
MERBREE

Mr. Lin Bingzhong
MERKE

Mr. Lin Chaowei

MRERE T4

Mr. Lin Chaowen

MREASCSE A4

Notes:

Deyong Investment
Deyong Investment

Deyong Investment
Deyong Investment

Deyong Investment
Deyong Investment

Deyong Investment
Deyong Investment

Beneficial owner

BEamfiBA

Beneficial owner

Beneficial owner

BEamlfEBA

Beneficial owner

BEamEBAA

Number of  the associated
shares held corporation
(Note 1) (Approximate)
BEH REBSEER
RO EE BERESL
(H1at 1) (BE#)
6,000 (L) 60%
1,160 (1) 11.6%
922 (L) 9.22%

864 (L) 8.64%

Wit -

1.

2.

The letter “L" denotes long position of the shares.

These shares are held by Deyong Investment Co., Ltd (“Deyong
Investment”). Deyong Investment is an investment holding
company incorporated in the BVI and is owned by Mr. Lin
Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei
and Mr. Lin Chaowen as to 60%, 11.6%, 10.54%, 9.22% and
8.64%, respectively. Mr. Lin Mingiang is a director of Deyong
Investment. Therefore, Mr. Lin Mingiang is deemed, or taken,
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Deyong
Investment for the purposes of the SFO.

On 31 December 2019, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong,
Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen entered
into an acting in concert agreement to acknowledge and
confirm (among other things) that they are parties acting in
concert during the three years ended 31 December 2019
and six months ended 30 June 2020 and that to continue to
act in the same manner in the Group after the Company’s
listing. As such, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr.
Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin
Chaowen are deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Deyong Investment.
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#% % M 19 A Deyong Investment Co., Ltd
([ Deyong Investment ]) #5 A - Deyong
Investment /3 78 2 J& i &2 B¥ & i Il Ak SZ 80 %2
EERAT D RIBAMREEE MERREE
MEAR S - MEAB R ERMBAEA SR
60% ~ 11.6% * 10.54% ~ 9.22% ;2 8.64% -
Hit - BIRFEF RBAEGRE - MERREER
ﬁz%&“* ER Deyong Investment Fff #3 A & 7
NRIRMD P AR

MR2019% 128318 KRB LA - HE R
Sk MREIE LA MREIE L RAMREA S
SR —BITEH WS AERRRER (EF
BIE)MEREE2019F12 831 B IE=AF
EREZE2020F6 A308 1ENEA & 5T
AT WHERARR EmEBEEUNR—T
ARAEETE - Al REBFHFRHER
Bl - MERBEE - MFHLE  MEFE LA -
PRER1E 5t 4 R MR EA 3T 5T A 4 4R A H Deyong
Investment T B B R R R FT B B 5 ¥ B
MR ©
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had registered any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company
or any associated corporations as at the date of this annual report,
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO
or the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director of
the Company or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

BREXHEEESIN RAFHRAY  HELRQF]
EFHBFTHRABRAR R AR AR A
Eki  HEARNDEREST  BELALXAF
RIEEZF R PG GOIE3521REFE KB
RIRE 5 K B 1651 58 XV BB S AR A2 <7 Bl B 55 17 &1
SARA MBI EAIEEIORE

EERERODVEFNZH

BRAFmMATHESEIN  RNEE2020612A31H
FFEREEAFHRBEAOTMAER  BERR
AREMEEREES BNRBAREKF F L
HAEMAEREAR RN KESMESF RN
R BENETECMZERS BAQA -
HAER A RSk T B A R ERT ST W 2k
BEARARESIEBBAR RS EMEAMmER
BRDKEHES (BIEERF) MESFE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the following corporation/persons (other than the interests
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests of 5% or more in the issued shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded

in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

BEARRDEITRN

FERREHEMATRERTREG
REBERGTEANEER KR

REEMA NEAFHRAH TIVEE AL (L
XABEBENARBAEEHERITRA BRI
5% A EROHE R B IRIR
EH MM ERPIEXVERE 2 X370 B E AR A
RA N BELRARLARRRIREE 5 KA
BiRPIE 336 IRBFEME M -

Percentage of

Number of shareholding in

shares held the Company
Name Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Approximate)
RAEATH
BB EE BERBESL
wE LB B EmHY (H1aE1) (&)
Deyong Investment (Note 2) Beneficial owner 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Deyong Investment (475#2) EmEAA 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Mr. Lin Chaoji (Wote 3) Interest held jointly with other persons 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MEAE S & (M52 3) HEM T HEFEER 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Yueyun (Note 4) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
WAEL L (Het4) BB 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Jiang Yanyun (Note 5) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
BnsE A+ (M5E5) B (B i = 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Zheng Xiugin (Note 6) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
BFERLZ L (HiF6) B (B i & 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Yunzhen (Note 7) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MEE 2+ (Hi77) B B fE = 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Ms. Lin Aimei (Note 8) Interest of spouse 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
MEEL L (HiE8) BB 850,500,000 (L) 67.5%
Glorious Way Investments Limited Beneficial owner 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
(“Glorious Way") (Note 9)
Glorious Way Investments Limited EHEAA 94,500,000 (1) 7.5%
([ Glorious Way |) (#/7%9)
Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing (Note 10) Interest in a controlled corporation 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
BB SE (M 10) AR RS 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
Ms. Wu Chor Har (Note 11) Interest of spouse 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
MM E R (Wt 11) BB 94,500,000 (L) 7.5%
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Notes:

10.

1.

The letter “L"” denotes long position of the shares.

Deyong Investment is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI and is owned by Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr.
Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen as to 60%, 11.6%,
10.54%, 9.22% and 8.64%, respectively.

On 31 December 2019, Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr.
Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen entered into an
acting in concert agreement to acknowledge and confirm (among
other things) that they are parties acting in concert during the three
years ended 31 December 2019 and six months ended 30 June
2020 and that to continue to act in the same manner in the Group
after the Company’s listing. As such, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin
Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and
Mr. Lin Chaowen are deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Deyong Investment.

Ms. Lin Yueyun is the spouse of Mr. Lin Mingiang. Therefore, Ms. Lin
Yueyun is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of
the Company which Mr. Lin Mingiang is interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

Ms. Jiang Yanyun is the spouse of Mr. Lin Bingzhong. Therefore, Ms.
Jiang Yanyun is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares
of the Company which Mr. Lin Bingzhong is interested in for the
purposes of the SFO.

Ms. Zheng Xiugin is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaoji. Therefore, Ms.
Zheng Xiugin is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares
of the Company which Mr. Lin Chaoji is interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

Ms. Lin Yunzhen is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaowei. Therefore, Ms. Lin
Yunzhen is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of
the Company which Mr. Lin Chaowei is interested in for the purposes
of the SFO.

Ms. Lin Aimei is the spouse of Mr. Lin Chaowen. Therefore, Ms. Lin
Aimei is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares of the
Company which Mr. Lin Chaowen is interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

Glorious Way is an investment holding company incorporated in the
BVI and is wholly owned by Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing.

Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing beneficially owns 100% of the issued shares of
Glorious Way, which in turn holds 7.5% of the Shares. Therefore, Mr.
Tsoi Wing Sing is deemed, or taken to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Glorious Way for the purpose of the SFO.

Ms. Wu Chor Har is the spouse of Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing. Therefore, Ms.
Wu Chor Har is deemed to be, or taken to be, interested in the shares
of the Company which Mr. Tsoi Wing Sing is interested in for the
purposes of the SFO.

Azt -

[LRRZBALREDOEE

Deyong Investmentﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%E\Eﬂﬂﬁiiﬁﬁ&
BERAR - DRIEMRREE MERBELE
BELE mm FERMAXEEHEF60%
11.6% ~ 10.54% ~ 9.22% ;2 8.64% °

M2019F 12 A31 8 - ME®REE HMEBFKE -
MREBESE A MBE R A RMEB A ETY —
TEH®H UERKER (EPEE) H#EREE
2019F 12 A3 B IE=EAFE REE20205F6 A
30RLERNERE—BITBMAL  UBRAQA L
MEEBAR—FRARANEETE - Bt - BIEE
HFREIEGO - MERE A - MEBLE KEE
P MRERME % 4 RAREA SCSE A 15 4R A 7 Deyong
Investment T K AR BT A IR (5 R B e -

MAZZ L AMRBEENES - Bt - RIFE S
REEGN - MAZZEHRER/HNEERHRERE
EHBARANADRROPEEES -

BUMEZ L RAMREEENRD - B - RIFES
NEE D BREL TR ANEERHRESE
SHE AN AR B P A #R -

BERL L RMARELLENORSE - Bib - REBEES
RBEED - BERLLHEEBLEERKPESE
EHAERSNAARRD P EAER -

MEZZ L AMAREENES - Bt - RIFEH
REEG > MER L THRE/HNEERHARE
EHEBARANARRROPHEEES -

MEXZ T AN ENER - Bt - RIFE S

MBS Km%ﬁi%&ﬁﬁi“ﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁ%
SHA RN AR B P A R -

Glorious Way R R B RE Z B S K L e &%
JRAT) - HEREXEDERSE -

2 E R 4 E 25 B Glorious Way B % 17 IR {5
100% - T Glorious Way #5 B % & IR 0 89 7.5% ° A
It RIRFEAREBAE G BREEEERRANE
YER Glorious Way FT#5 B AR A R IR P B i o

MRBEL T REREFENRE - Bib - REES
EHEGD  SANE R T HR AREENERESR
EHEBRENARRROD P HEEES -
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or
short positions in the issued share capital of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his/her connected entity has or had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party subsisting during or
at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
any controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Apart from the Group's business, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders or any of their respective close associates
was engaged in or had any interest in any business that competes
or may compete with the principal business of the Group, which
would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules. or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 16 December 2020 (the “Adoption
Date”), which become effective on the Listing Date.

0]

(i)

Purpose of Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants; and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-
time), director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any
substantial shareholder of the Group, or any distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider of the Group, options to subscribe at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (iii) below for such
number of shares as it may determine in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme. The basis of eligibility of
any participant to the grant of any option shall be determined
by the Board (or as the case may be, the independent non-
executive Directors) from time to time on the basis of his/her
contribution or potential contribution to the development
and growth of the Group.

(iii) Exercise price of share option

The exercise price of share option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and shall be at least highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant of the
option.

(iv) Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HKD1.00.

BB IR T &

PAN/N

AR2020F 12 A16 B (&AM B H ) B4

Ry —EBRET S ((BRESR)) KR LD
HHEIAERR -

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BRESTENEN

BhEAEEERSIMEEREFNHAR
AALBERERHEBEINERA N ESAEE
EBRIHES -

SREERREMNT

EXe2ENBRERRESNENR W
AEBEEFEE (2BHRE) EF %A
AHER  IAAEEEMEERR  HAE
BEMoEE AeR - HEE KR FTF
BEBHIBBHREBTRLBRE RS
AT AR 4 B P M S B O 6 AR - 4R T 3R (i) BRGGH
FNERRBEFSUREEHENRD -
EES(HRBEAMERRHRBEIINTES)
ATEREEN2EEHAEEERIIER
PIT 1 HH 3k AT BE F I #) B BUOR B R AE AT B AR
N2 EEER -

BRETHEE

RIBBREFSRENBRETEEHES
S2RET ETGERTIREE (R
PR R B IR X P B RE R PR
B TE : ()R RERBRERD AR
BEEXAEBIMEHRERMBOBA F
BUTIE ¢ K (i) PR A AR L B B A 4
[

REBREREAERD

REBRENENRMEHERENEE (2
EZH) BB RER - BREARAER
EMBLORERNBIRERA AR 1.00
BTT
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(v) Maximum number of shares that may be

issued

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of our Company if this will result in such
30% limit being exceeded.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of
the Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (i.e. 126,000,000
shares) unless approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by obtaining approval of the Company’s shareholders
in general meeting provided that the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit. Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed 10%
limit. A circular must be sent to the Company’s shareholders
containing the information as required under the Listing Rules
in this regard.

(vi) Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting in the manner stipulated in the Listing Rules, the
maximum entitlement for each eligible participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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(vii) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

(viii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date and shall expire
at the close of business on the business day immediately
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated
earlier by our Shareholders in general meeting. As at 31
December 2020, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately nine years and 11.5 months.

For further details on the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme, please refer to Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

As of 31 December 2020 and the date of this annual report,
no share options had been granted or agreed to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme. As a result, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
as of the date of this annual report was 126,000,000,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as of the Adoption Date.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not
entered into or conducted any connected transactions, which
were subject to the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as required under the Listing
Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group's related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions are connected transactions which are subject to the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

(vii) 17 15 5 AR 1 A9 B PR
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as of the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed Dakin Capital Limited (“Dakin Capital”) to be
the compliance adviser. Dakin Capital, being the sponsor of the
Company in relation to the Listing, has declared its independence
pursuant to Rule 3A.07 of the Listing Rules. Save as provided for
in relation to the share offer and/or disclosed in the Prospectus,
neither Dakin Capital nor any of its associates and none of the
directors or employees of Dakin Capital who have been involved in
providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a
result of the share offer, have any interest in any securities of the
Company or any other companies of the Group (including options
or rights to subscribe for such securities).

REVIEW OF AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS

The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed that, following
specific enquiry by the Company, they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code since the Listing Date
to the date of this report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM IPO

Details of the use of the proceeds from IPO are set out on page 14
of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Deyun Holding Ltd.
Mr. Lin Minqgiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

*  For identification purpose only
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To the Shareholders of Deyun Holding Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Deyun Holding Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
98 to 180, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue
recognition for manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services.

ERNER

RPEREE SR ARER (B EEHER)
RITEH RPERSEATRENEILER
R TR B & MR E A BN A2
S e — SR -

HARE RAMESHRFEIEERTRLEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEH

Revenue recognition for manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services

RELEREURBRE WHERED

Refer to Note 2.21 and Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A2 A BHRMEE2.21 RIS -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of
approximately RMB198,478,000 was recognised in the
Group's consolidated income statement.

HZE2020F 12 A31HILFE  EEEMNGEARFRDHE
U AR % 198,478,000 7T °

Revenue from manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services is recognised over the period of the contract using
the input method. For contracts in progress at the period
end, the Group applies a percentage of completion to the
contracted price and the percentage is determined with
reference to the actual costs incurred and the total estimated
costs on completion for the services.

HETCERRHABRRBUENE QR EHKERA
EHER - MR ERAOME EREHANEBRAT
TERL MEZBILNELECSELNERKALR
T8 T BB B AT B AN AR FREEOE ©

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of revenue

transactions occurred and hence, significant audit effort was
spent in auditing this area.

BHPZENTENRAERMEENKRER ZSREREAX -
FEith - 2ttt T mAERRERTER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMWEFNMEEREENEE

Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition
for manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing service
included:

BPIPLBUETE IR IR R AR B RS WS R PETTRER
B e

. We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
in respect of revenue recognition for manufacturing of
lace and provision of dyeing service and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatements by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors;

e BBEZEMAFGTETENEENAMESRREZ
K AT AR REEIBE A RETEE RIEH
RAEREWEERNERES  LRFEERHERR
A EA R

e  We discussed with management and evaluated
whether the method used by management to estimate
revenue in relation to contracts in progress at period
end is reasonable;

e HMAEEEIWIMHEEBRMREFERS
MREMRB T EEEEE

e We assessed management’s identification of
performance obligations and the recognition of revenue
over-time by examining the sales contracts with
customers and with reference to our understanding of
the client’s business and industry practices;

BRRETEPNHEHEANL2ERMNYELEHKN
THRETEEN BAFHEEEBIRNBOERER
BB R R R M s
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BEREFETEH

EEETTEE @)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMWEFNMEEREENEE

e We checked, on a sample basis, the contracted prices
to the underlying sales invoices and sales contracts;

o RMMERERBEHEERINHEESHNENER

e We tested, on a sample basis, the actual costs incurred
including direct material costs, direct labour costs and
overhead costs to underlying supporting documents;

o HMBMEREMBEIFXHNEELERKAES &
REEVHRE BEERBTIREAREERE

° For contracts in progress at the year end, we assessed
the estimated costs on completion of selected contracts
with reference to total costs of the Group’s similar sales
contracts that are completed, and checking the total
cost incurred in respect to those selected contracts
subsequent to the year end; and

e HMFERERANME  BEM2ZELEEETHOER
UHEANMABRA  FFEEESONMBETRAE
VWIREZEEEANRNFRECELENERAN © &

e We checked the calculation of the revenue recognition
based on the contracted prices, the actual costs
incurred and the total estimated costs on completion.

o EMERRXZER SELENBEEXERRTHKE
MRt AR RE R R RN ETR -

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered
that the recognition of revenue from manufacturing of
lace and provision of dyeing service was supported by the
available evidence.

AR EArmETREF  BAIR/RETE REHRAEIR
B s e R IR A BIE S -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement
mAellEm R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12 A31 H L FE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
BT AR® T ARETIT
Revenue & 5 198,478 203,443
Cost of sales HER AR 6 (124,621) (136,539)
Gross profit EF 73,857 66,904
Other income Eab g A 7 5,328 744
Other losses, net HibE5EF5R 8 (1,584) (6)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX 6 (2,278) (2,324)
Administrative expenses TR 6 (22,089) (14,335)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & @& & K& & Q& ERE
and contract assets EiaF5 6 (425) =
Operating profit R 52,809 50,983
Finance income = ON 10 388 131
Finance costs & B AR 10 (604) (2,039)
Finance costs, net B R A E R (216) (1,908)
Profit before income tax BRAT S B AR 52,593 49,075
Income tax expense FriSfiF X 11 (8,772) (7,224)
Profit for the year attributable to AAREE ABIEFREF
owners of the Company 43,821 41,851
Earnings per share attributable to AREHEEABRLEEBRER
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAREE(ARES) 12 4.64 4.84
The above consolidated income statement should be read in  _Filt4r& U ah 7= FE ELRE M Y BT 57 — GBI 38 -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A EHEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 2020F 12 A31 Bt FE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194
AR®T ARBT T
Profit for the year FREA 43,821 41,851
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2w :
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 1777_ SEN SRR A
Currency translation differences BEMmE xR - 2
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAATEEAEEER
attributable to owners of the Company 2HKNEHEE 43,821 41,853
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income — _EillARE 2 [ U2 3% FE B2 08 BT B9 BT 5 — GF RO GE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

As at 31 December 2020 720204 12 531 H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
BT AR® T ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Properties, plant and equipment W - BEREE 14 146,651 146,833
Right-of-use asset EAEEE 14 2,722 2,804
Investment property "EME 15 341 382
Intangible assets mLEE 16 645 833
Prepayments TERTFRIA 18 277 223
150636 151,075
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 19 9,272 9,922
Contract assets BHEE 20 7,556 16,585
Trade and bills receivables B S REWGRIE KRR EE 20 13,060 15,694
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIA K H fth FE UL FRIE 18 10,013 2,527
Amounts due from shareholders FEU IR R R IE 32(a) = 140
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 21 109,483 38,480
I 149,384 . 83,348
Total assets EEHE 300,020 234,423
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners AAREEABGEER
of the Company
Share capital N 22 - 138
Reserves G 222,951 179,130
Total equity =g 222,950 179,268
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payables E b BT 3RI8 23 1,533 1,592
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBEE 24 346 433
I 1879 2,025
* The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand EROBEREA TN

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ML R

As at 31 December 2020 7420204 12 A 31 H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
s AR® T AREFIT
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables B 5 A 25 10,706 14,058
Other payables and accruals Hh B SR IE R E AT RUR 23 37,859 12,914
Amounts due to shareholders FERT IR A 32(a) = 5,000
Contract liabilities SERAE 23 3,440 1,307
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT S B E 10,185 6,851
Bank borrowings RITER 26 13,000 13,000
T 75190 53,130
Total liabilities fE2E 77,069 55,155
Total equity and liabilities EEkEERE 300,020 234,423

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 180 were
approved by the Board of Director on 29 March 2021 and were

signed on its behalf.

Lin Mingiang
MERE
Director

EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

%ﬂ'\m

—ll— N7/ —
/\,%u,.\@%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12 A31 H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRREEAES
Share Other  Statutory  Exchange  Retained Total
capital reserves reserve reserve  earnings equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RA  HitRf iERE EXRE  REREN  BERLH
AREBTE ARETT ARETR ARETT AREFRT ARETR
(Note a)
(Mizta)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 81 A& 138 104,466 10,720 2 63,942 179,268
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 43,821 43,821
Total comprehensive income 2EUREE - - - - 43,821 43,821
Transactions with owners BREANRS
Cancellation of ordinary shares AARGHL AR (M:2)

of the Company (Note 22) (138) - - - - (138)
Issuance of ordinary shares of ARARTL AR (M 22)

the Company (Note 22) ¥ - - - - -
Appropriation (Note b) BR(Hib) - - 5,900 - (5,900) =
Total transactions with owners BREANRZER (138) - - 590 - - (590 (138)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020% 12 31 A& ER -* 104,466 16,620 2 101,863 222,951
Balance at 1 January 2019 2019151888 - 95150 6,53 - 26206 12791
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 41,851 41,851
Other comprehensive income HEb2EhaE - - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive income dEb=EE N sl e — 2 4181 41853
Transactions with owners BREANRS
Capital injection from an investment BRRREEIREEN

holding vehicle of the pre-IPQ investor REBRIETE

(Note 1.2(d)) (Fi3E1.2(0) - 4,316 - - - 14,316
Effect of reorganisation in respect of FUEAEEET-RARN

the acquisition of a company ERT2 (:E1.20)

comprising the Group (Note 1.2(f) - (5,000) - - - (5,000)
Issuance of ordinary shares of the Company ~ A2 A% T LM (FF51.2(2) & (0))

(Note 1.2 (a) & (@) 138 - - - - 138
Appropriation (Note b) B (D) - - 4,185 - (4,185) -
Total transactions with owners BEEANRZEE 138 9316 418 - - gy 9,454
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31 BV ER 138 104,466 10,720 2 63,942 179,268
*  The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand * HEEREVEE f2:3 i aliva
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

Notes:

(a

The a
read i

Other reserves represent the combined share capital and capital
reserve of the companies comprising the Group, after elimination of
inter-company transactions and balances as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 in relation to the reorganisation.

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC
to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated
from the profit after income tax (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. A PRC company is required
to appropriate an amount of 10% of statutory profits after income tax
to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of its post-tax profits
of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution
when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than
50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only
be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the company’s
operations, or to increase the capital of the company. In addition, a
company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus
reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of
shareholders.

bove consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
n conjunction with the accompanying notes.

it

(a)

LA A M B B K R RS MY MO B R — GBI AR

A

H M fEREIER 2020 K% 2019 12 A31 8 » A&EE
BETREARKHBEERNQARMR S RERENE
BEANAHRAREANHE -

HEDEROERRTE  PREAMIRRMESERE
AEHUEFI 2 IRAT - ARt B HZ BAEMEHKRA
S2HmWAMBHREN EHESEFENRFERR)
BEMETAERETREE - MBAEERESEH
FEBNMRL - PERANRDKEEAFEOH
B MAT - AEBPA BB ETE R 10% NS
EREREBERE - BEATAKRENERBLEM
ARES0%E - AR Z LEE O RERBEES
ERNBAARER BRAQAEEIIRMATE
Ao fpsh s ARAIRBRFRBR - TEHEHE
HgENERERRES -

o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAERLMER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %2020 12 A31 H L FE

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194
L AR¥T T AR®TTT
Cash flows from operating activities E&FZEHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 28(a) 87,736 59,652
Income tax paid [RENEZECY (5,525) (4,497)
Interest received 2 U FE 388 131
Net cash generated from KRB MGHREFE
operating activites 82599»55286
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHRERE
Purchase of properties, plant BEWME  WE&EHE
and equipment (2,014) (9,812)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEME  WEREEN
plant and equipment Frig 58 28(b) 101 162
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE (70) (261)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI TERIL N - (4,054)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RITIE OB - 5,854
Net cash used in investing activities RETETARE FE (1983) iiiiiiiiiii 8111)
Cash flows from financing activities BMETBRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIE RIS RAE 28(c) 13,000 27,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITER 28(c) (13,000) (79,000)
Interest paid BFE (634) (2,105)
Capital injection from an investment BRAABERREEN
holding vehicle of the pre-IPO investor "EZERTETE 1.2(d) - 14,316
Consideration paid for the acquisition of ~ Fh B RAEAWE — KW B
a subsidiary in respect to reorganisation NAMERMRE 28(c) (5,000) =
Payment of IPO listing expenses BHXAMBEE ETRAXNR (3,980) (2,349)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEFFTAR S FE (96189 (42,138)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & N I8 & S EYIEINFEE 71,002 5,037
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYRERFEREFED
of the year 38,480 33,327
Currency translation differences B E = 1 116
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRBERREFED
of the year 21 109,483 38,480
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in ~ _Eili4R& IR £ 78 & 3% & ELFE MY 69 BT 5 — GF RO GE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 2020F 12 A31 Bt FE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Deyun Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2019 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is 71 Fort Street, P.O. Box
500, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group (together, the “Group”) is principally engaged in
manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing services
(the "Listing Business”).

The ultimate holding company of the Company
is Deyong Investment Co., Limited ("Deyong
Investment”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"”). The ultimate controlling
shareholders are Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong,
Mr. Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei, Mr. Lin Chaowen
acting in concert (together, the “Controlling
Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing”) on 13 January 2021.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in unit of Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise
stated.

—RER  EARENNEE

1.1 —RER

EEERARAR ([XRAF]) 12019
FIH4BREFSHSQRE (1961
FEZFED - BiEe RE) RHE
HEAMK Y AEHREERAAE - AR
B BRI A 71 Fort Street, P.O.
Box 500, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands °

AR H/—FREEBR AT - AEH (5
?%Fﬁ%J)‘I%%ﬁE%%i?E 2 MEH
RER%(TEWEK]D -

RATNREERRTBNEE R L
HE (I XRBELXEB MK LY
A Al Deyong Investment Co., Limited
(I Deyong Investment ]) ° & 485 A% i%
RAETE —BHMRBESE - MRBL
B MRERE e A - MERE SR RMEAX
LA (RBIERRR]) -

KABRHNR2021F1A13BEERB
BARSHBERAREREM(TEH] -

BZEGAVBREANELARE (AR
WDEY BRIFEREEH TRIMBH
BEHNBERROTL (AREFD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

1 GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group underwent the reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which mainly involved the following
major steps:

(@ On 4 January 2019, the Company was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. 10,000 shares
of the Company were allotted and issued at par
on 7 January 2019 to Deyong Investment which is
held by Mr. Lin Mingiang, Mr. Lin Bingzhong, Mr.
Lin Chaoji, Mr. Lin Chaowei and Mr. Lin Chaowen.

(b) On 29 January 2019, Deyun Investment Limited
("Deyun Investment (BVI)") was incorporated in
the BVI and held by the Company.

(¢ On 13 March 2019, Deyun Holding (HK) Limited
("Deyun Holding (HK)") was incorporated in
Hong Kong and held by Deyun Investment (BVI).

(d) On 23 September 2019, Regal Star Holdings
Limited (“Regal Star”), an investment holding
vehicle of the pre-IPO investor, Mr. Tsoi Wing
Sing (“Mr. Tsoi”), subscribed for 10% of equity
interest of Fujian Deyun Technology Co., Ltd.* (&
#EEERE AR A A) ("Deyun Technology”)
at 16,000,000 Hong Kong dollar (“"HKD")
(approximately RMB14,316,000). The amount was
paid subsequently on 6 November 2019.

(e) On 18 December 2019, Fujian Deyun Consulting
Services Co., Ltd.* (1@ 2@ A ARG ERAF])
(“Deyun Consulting”) was incorporated in the
PRC and held by Deyun Holding (HK).

(f)  On 19 December 2019, Deyun Consulting acquired
the entire equity interests in Deyun Technology
from the Controlling Shareholders and Regal Star,
at a total cash consideration of RMB5,000,000.
The consideration was fully settled on 13 March
2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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*

REBARABRNNBEMERZME
RARERED AEFECETEA(E
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(@ M2019F 148 ARAREMRE
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MREREL S A - MRBRE ST A RAMEAX
% 4 5 5 #) Deyong Investment ©

(b) R 201941 H29H ' Deyun
Investment Limited ([ Deyun
Investment (BVI) |) 7 % & f& 20 Bf
SHM - WARARARFFA -

(© M2019% 3 A13H ' Deyun
Holding (HK) Limited ([ Deyun
Holding (HK) ) T & & A -
A f Deyun Investment (BV)#5 4

(d) R2019F9AH23H B XA
ERREESLE R4 ([EEE])
MEEERTEZESEEEERERD
A ([E%]) 24 16,000,000 7T ([ 38
7T (AR 14,316,000 70) REE
REEENEARAA (EEH
BD10%K#E - 22 BHEEBEERN
2019F 11 A6 B X 1T »

(e) FA2019F 12 A18H « @2 EEH
MRS AR AR ([REZHA]D TR
B ¥ fff B 37 - 3¢ B3 Deyun Holding
(HK) ¥ 5E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

1 GENERAL INFORMATION,
REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (Continued)

(g9 On 20 December 2019, the Company allotted
and issued 8,000 and 2,000 new shares for
cash consideration of 8,000 United States dollar
("USD") and USD2,000 respectively to Deyong
Investment and Glorious Way Investments Limited
("Glorious Way"), which is controlled by Mr.
Tsoi.

1.3 Basis of presentation

Immediately prior to and after the Reorganisation, the
Listing Business has been conducted through Deyun
Technology. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the
Listing Business and Deyun Technology are transferred
to and held by the Company. The Company has
not been involved in any other business prior to the
Reorganisation and does not meet the definition of a
business. The Reorganisation is merely a reorganisation
of the Listing Business with no change in management
of such business and the ultimate controlling parties of
the Listing Business remains the same. Accordingly, the
Group resulting from the Reorganisation is regarded as
a continuation of Deyun Technology, with the assets
and liabilities of the Group recognised and measured at
the carrying amounts of the Listing Business under the
financial statements of Deyun Technology for all periods
presented.

—RER  EEAREINEE @

1.2 E4 @)

(@ H20199F 128208 KA A M
Deyong Investment &z F1 %2 5 4 2 1
9 Glorious Way Investments Limited
([ Glorious Way 1) % B Fid 8 K 8
778,000 A% K2 2,000 BT 1 - IR &
RER8,000%E 7T ([%E5T]) % 2,000
ETTe

13 25 E%E

SRBEME  EWEBIEBBEN
POETT - RBER TTEBREER
PEBEARBLHARRFKE - AR
REEBAZA RS REMEMER B
IEEERBESE - EHER EHERBEDH
BEH MEBEBNEEYEZES b
TR H) R AR B T7 RH5 A& o Bt
EHELANASERESEERRNL
B AEENBEERBBEREBEERR
B 25 BRI MR IR EHEBH
RHEERRTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
directors of the Group to exercise judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHHEEME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 RBEXE (/)
14 5 ERAN B AT 2 B ]2 38 A5 2 A K AT 7K

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

New standards and amendments to existing

standards not yet adopted

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5EH
HZ BB
BETHBER

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BBV BRELERFE 1698 (BFTA)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BEMBREERIFE I -
BEGTERE 395
ERTBWEENNE TR
BEMBEHREENFEIRR
ERTBMEERFE 1655 (BT 4)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

BEE e ERE 165 (BT A)
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

BREGFHEAIE 375 (BFTAR)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

BBV BIMELERIE 35 (BFTA)
Annual Improvements Project
FEBGEER

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

EBGETERE 15 (IBFTA)

HKFRS 17

BAVBRELNE TSR

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BT HBRELENE 105 &
EB et ERF 2858 (BT A)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Covid-19 fHEATE & TR
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

MEREERE -F R

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Use
Mz - BERHE
— ¥ EAE AR TS IR
Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
EEMEHN—EBITEHNNAR
Reference to the Conceptual Framework
BESEZR Ay IR
Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle
2018 FF 2020 F A HAFF Z Biuit
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
BERRENIEREDDE
Insurance Contracts
REEHD
Sales or Contributions of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
WEEHABRE N RAELEZEDN
BEHEHIEA

1 June 2020
20206 A1 H
1 January 2021

20211 A1 H

1 January 2022
20221 A1 H
1 January 2022

20221 A1 H
1 January 2022
2022F1 A1 H
1 January 2022
20221 A1 H
1 January 2023

2023F1 A1 H
1 January 2023
20231 H1H
Effective date

to be determined

ERAHEFE

REBABER LA # 3] SRS FTERI KR
BEANSTALERE FLURR - ERE
BETVIZHE  XBRBRAZFER
LREEBMHEREENNETATE
HAEBENM BN MR L RERBKE
MEBAFE -

The Group will adopt the above new or revised
standards and amendments to existing standards
as and when they become effective. Management
has performed preliminary assessment and does not
anticipate any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations upon adopting these
standards and amendments to existing HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(@) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS
9") in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries now comprising the
Group have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2 FESHBEREBE@

2.2 MtB A E (&)

22158 Ak ()

(a)

RBEEG ()

WEE B RN E AR S o

%756 6f 0 B BETT - W
BHRARBRKEBLDFERN
PR U s BB R T (B B
et E RN H BN A TE
ERENTEMEENEM
W B BN B E T HER

AEE KT HE RO EMAKA
RERWE A BN R FERE
RoWRR/—BEEHAE
MBARENATFERESR
B mREBMBERSEL
FokIemIAI([EBME
HELEREIR ) NBEEPHE
R DBERERNIANRE
BRBHAE MERES
BERtEm AR e

PREEAE REEETD
EFEIE A A a2 58 AR (A
5 A 7 4% W FE 77 #9 BRI W
BHBN D FEBBMRKE
ARAIFEEATENER
TIABRIIMEREE - HEZEN
RE CHIBFEREDR
SCRTFE A M S BB K P
WEMNBRRFEENRTF
BMRBEERBNBERLT)
AZERe B RN RSP

SERRZEANRRBERS
EHREZHHMAREE KREH
TUHE - RERERTE
i AEERKETHE
ARMEBREFHLE
HY 525 B DA R R B 7K S [ R
MR — 8 e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the directors who make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

2.4.1Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
is presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional currency and the Group’s presentation
currency.

2.4.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
on a net basis within “Other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.4.3Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e  assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs, net of their residual value, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Shorter of estimated
useful lives or remaining
lease terms

Plant and machinery 5to 15 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in
“Other losses, net” in consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP") represents
properties and plant under construction and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No provision for
depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are available for
use, the cost are transferred to relevant categories of
properties, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

2.6 Investment property

Investment property is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Investment property, is held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and is not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
investment property over the shorter of its estimated
useful life of 30 years or the related leasing period and
after taking into account of its estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

The asset’s residual value and useful life is reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “Other losses, net” in consolidated
income statements.

2 FESHBEREBE@

2.5 V1% - BB RRE @)

HEREHBRTERBLBAAEHAR
REEETE IRGABERANIE
5 1RF BB | N HERR

ERTR(ERIRDEERTOME
KB - mARANERFHREBRZ (40
B) HKABREERKBRARER
fLEFREAR ERIRZERERSE
REMEERT RAMERERE 2R
AFR-HERBEEAHER  AKAE
HEREAEDE  BEMREER A
R ERBRETRITE -

26 BEWE

BRENERELKARBRANERS
BREMETFAURBEHES WAL
ERERNIBEIMERE  WIBAK
BIER REMFEVSEKATE 8
X5 E R RERKA (ER)
BREMERAEF RMEHRBEEER  NE
FHERF B0 F R ABMBEEHRE AR
RERE) NERERITE - UME
BREMERA

BENTISBEERTERFRERES
EHRRITRE - AR B -

WEEMREESNEGTIKREEE
AR EERAENREETRE S
o

HER S BERERBL B EHAR
FREEEE  IRGABERANIE
fl B 185 B8 IO HERR

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Intangible assets

Software

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. (Computer software is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment, if any. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset'’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as assets to
be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.9.2Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments to be measured at amortised
cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

2 FESHBEREBE@

29 EREE
291548

KBRS BEE DR AEEY
R B -

DERTEBREECHEENER
BANRERESNIRKME

AEBEEEEEZFTEENEBE
ABHEEFDRBEHRE -

2.92FRBRTE

RUNFHERE - AEBRAFEMN
(HWERMEELIFRAFETFAR
S BBEEMEEERELNRKS
KA ESREE - WA FERFTA
BENEMEEX SR ANERX
o

ETRERERTERTERFE
NRE - HERARTETANS
BMEERERBEZE -

EXETA

B TANERITERTFAKEE
BEENEHRAREERERE
FrEmE - AEESEEFTAD
BRRHBHKAGE -

FFRBAWRTRE  MRER
BEERASRMNEMNRNEERHE
ARG E - BEER L HERSOR
B - BERIRE KA E R
HHBERMNEBRE RS ER
REBDPHER - ZFEREENT
BUAAERRF R AZLMBIA

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
I T R 2R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.3Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and reward of
ownership.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statements of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost
are subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model.
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.3 sets out the details on
how the Group determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For contract assets, trade and bills receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition. The provision matrix
is determined based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the contract assets, trade and
bills receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For other receivables, the Group measures the
impairment as either 12-month expected credit losses or
life-time expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of the other receivables has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.

2.12 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade, bills
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment.

2.13 Inventories

The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
which stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Trade, bills and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in interest expense over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Borrowings (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
finance costs.

2 FESHBEREBE@

217 &7 (&)

BERFRAAXNEEREERBBIRNS
E R A ERRS R A R RE WA
EEABRERE B BRI ER IR o

HA SRR ANELE BRI -

2.18 1%

EAKEEBEEHFAAEERAEX
HEERMT METEEAEFTSRZEER
mih - Beesmn st BHEE R - A
SRR -BREEBRT SR EE -

HMHRZBEEUEE BTEEEEER
IR E AR T E BB E B A AR
RETE - MERBRETFREFA—BR
HERE TR AT REIRIE - 2 HER IS -

BEBEABRHEMANXIZRETEREE
BHIREXHOREFTE  BRANER
MERTSHEKNRHREAERZER
B R EORE G o B I R 38 0 o
BEERRBENRAE -

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR

123



124

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

2.19.1Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

2.19.2 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

2 FESHBEEBE@

219 BN RIE S A G 32

MRS HAS B RIRE HRRBK
ARBRLEEBHERRERGE - Wik
HREREEREARBRAOREEEMSE
HHETCHREEERBBEFEHREE -

2.19.1 BN R Fr S %

BUEAFR1S B 32 th TH AR 1% 1 B) A0 B a8
D) e B N AR B N A R
WARB RN REMRER/MIE
BRMORIEDIGE - EFESL
BRAHBROIZREMRROER
EHFERRENRR  YEEE
B0 AR IR T8 HAZ8 (R % 75 A B S
H) & B AR E B

2192 EE P12 H

EEMBRABABEREERA
EOREREERABESAME
BROEEELHEENTRIEE
BBE - A WEEAERARE
KEHEENN LR - AT EHE
RIEEHIABE - WIEERTEH K
BERXS (TREXBAM) 1
BESRENNSHER  MERXS
BAZEGTRELERTE N K
BB A& RIE SRR
EEFTS B R AR s BIR ek 2 Al
CRMAEE LCRM XEFH
BRIERIA A EZFRELEHIEE
BEEESERSEERANTRE (R
AR MEERE e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

2.19.2 Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
income tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

2.20.1Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

2.20.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statements of financial position
if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months
after the reporting period, regardless of when the
actual settlement is expected to occur.

2.20.3 Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

2.20.4Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amount for the goods sold or service rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activity.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customers and the payment by the
customers exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
statements of financial position as a contract asset or a
contract liability, depending on the relationship between
the Group’s performance and the customer's payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred
to obtain a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and
presented as assets and subsequently amortised when
the related revenue is recognised.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
the promised goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been
met for the Group’s activity as described below:

Manufacturing of lace and provision of dyeing
services

Rendering of manufacturing of lace and provision of
dyeing services is recognised when the control of the
goods or services is transferred to the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.

Revenue is recognised over time using the input method

with reference to the costs incurred for the goods or
services.

2.22 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI RRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases

The Group leases land for the manufacturing of lace
and provision of dyeing services. The consideration paid
for the lease is treated as a right-of-use asset, which
is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Lease land is
amortised over the remaining lease term using straight-
line method.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and the
corresponding liabilities at the date of which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index
or arate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of less than 12 months.
Low-value assets comprise assets with value below
RMBS5,000.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the periods in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other income” on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
recognised.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

3.1 Market risk

3.1.1Foreign exchange risk

The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, and there are
no significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
RMB, which is the functional currency of the major
operating companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in USD. At 31 December
2020, if USD had weakened/strengthened by
5% against the RMB with all other variables held
constant, profit before income tax for the year
then ended would have been approximately
RMB440,000 lower/higher (2019: RMB427,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on the translation of USD
denominated contract assets, trade and bills
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

At 31 December 2020, if HKD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit before income
tax for the years then ended would have been
approximately RMB374,000 lower/higher (2019:
RMB717,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange difference on the translation
of HKD denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.2Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly attributable
to its cash at banks and bank borrowings with
floating interest rates. Details of the Group’s cash
at banks and bank borrowings have been disclosed
in Note 21 and Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Other than cash at banks and bank borrowings,
the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on
cash at banks and bank borrowings had been
100 basis points higher/lower with all variables
held constant, profit before income tax for the
years then ended would have been approximately
RMB965,000 higher/lower (2019: RMB255,000
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower
of interest income on the cash at banks netted
with higher/lower interest expenses on the bank
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.3Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash at banks, contract assets, trade and bills
receivables and other receivables. The carrying
amounts of each financial asset represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
credit terms are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are limited because
deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings and
management does not expect any loss from non-
performance by these counterparties.

(@) Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financial asset
that is subject to the expected credit loss

models:

° Contract assets, trade and bills
receivables

. Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.3Credit risk (Continued)

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
contract assets, trade and bills receivables. The
Group measures the expected credit losses on a
combination of both individual and collective basis.

To measure the expected credit losses, contract
assets, trade and bills receivables have grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled services and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis

Contract assets, trade and bills receivables with
known insolvencies are assessed individually for
impairment allowances and are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
As at 31 December 2020, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these individually assessed
receivables was approximately RMB569,000 (2019:
RMB612,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.3Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking into
account the nature of the customer and its ageing
category, and applying the expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated on
the basis of historical credit losses experienced,
adjusted to reflect the effects of existing market
conditions as well as forward looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately RMB100,000 (2019:
Nil).

Impairment losses on contract assets, trade and
bills receivables are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets and contract assets”
in the consolidated income statement. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.3Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group's other financial assets carried at
amortised cost include other receivables in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
impairment loss of other financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured based on the 12-month
expected credit loss. The 12-month expected
credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected credit
loss that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, management
considered the credit risk of other receivables to
be low as counterparties have a strong capacity
to meet their contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit losses for these other receivables
were immaterial under 12-month expected losses
method. Therefore, the loss allowance provision
for these balances was close to zero and no
provision was recognised.

3.1.4Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

3 BERAKRERE@

3.1 miZREKE &)
3.1.31E Rk (1)

BB DI R A B & B

NEBIZEERK AT RN b S R
BEBERAVBKIERNEE R
Hofth FEUSFRIE o RS AT BRAY
Hih SR EENRBEREIIIZI2
BAMEHEEEIBTE - 121/
ARBEHEEEBEARSE A BHE
REAANAREEENESHRTA
HEANENSHMERNFESE
HEEEBEN—BD - AW #HE
BERMEEFERERBELR %
BEBAGTEHEHREEBERAE

.

2020 %2019 12 A31H - &
BEERAEMERFUENEER
BIK AAHFFABERENE
TEHBReREETHE KNG
AEBEEFE BREREANTE
HERE  ZSHMAEKRIENTE
HEEBBYTEKN Al %%
EHRNEBEET AT AVEER
RO

314G B ELER

AEBNBRREMERRF LA
HORBDESHER - UHERERT
MBS REEARMNEERREY

MEBERHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Market risk (Continued)

3.1.4Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash
and cash equivalents amounting to approximately
RMB109,483,000 (2019: RMB38,480,000), that
are expected to be readily available to generate
cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of receivables
that the Group considers appropriate and
adequate amount of available financing including
short-term borrowings are also considered by the
Group in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient
bank balances, committed credit lines available
and interest bearing borrowings which enable the
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMKERRBERE @
(Continued)
3.1 Market risk (Continued) 3.1 miZREKE &)
3.1.4Liquidity risk (Continued) 314 EELEMRE ()
The amounts disclosed in the table were the FARENSEAENRMERS
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the MERAEEERERIANER
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. HEf -
Less than More than
On demand 1 year 1year Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REXR PME BBE1F st

ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTTE

At 31 December 2020 20205128318
Trade payables B HEMNFE - 10,706 - 10,706
Other payables and accruals b & 5178 & B 5+ 50 0B

(excluding accrued employee (B3R EEEH -

benefits, deposits received BEPIRGRER

from customers and other  E i E)

taxes) - 31,125 2,661 33,786
Bank borrowings - principal TER-FeHMH
portion - 13,000 - 13,000
Bank borrowings — interest  $R{T{E N —F| 8 %17
portion - 504 - 504
- 55,335 2,661 57,996
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31H
Trade payables BAENTR = 14,058 = 14,058

Other payables and accruals  E-H e 208 & & 5t 708
(excluding accrued employee (B IEEHEEEH -
benefits, deposits received BREPIEGEE R
from customers and other Hin®ig)

taxes) - 3,150 2,726 5,876
Amounts due to shareholders &% 52 778 5,000 - - 5,000
Bank borrowings - principal  SRITHEF AR & E1p

portion - 13,000 - 13,000
Bank borrowings - interest TEFR—F 25

portion - 431 - 431

5,000 30,689 2,726 38,415
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital represent
total borrowings and total equity, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The total
debt to total capital ratios at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were as follows:

KR EEE @)

3.2 EXERE

FEREREANBBERREASER
SEREEEBELBNEN  UAK
REREE  FERELMCHNSHREE
BN g - WHERFRENEARRBEAIRE

REFLFBREARRE  AKEXREH
ERBRRRNORESE  MERED
BEARSHEEENREES

AEBIZBABEHBEERN L RERE
Ko BBEBERBENERAEMBEHRAE
FIoI R AEE AR - N2020F K
20019F 12 A3THMBREBHBERL
KT

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194

AR¥T T ARETT

Total borrowings MIEFKR
Total equity e

Total debt to total capital ratio

The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from
7.3% as at 31 December 2019 to 5.8% as at 31
December 2020 was mainly due to the increase in total
equity from profit for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group did not have any financial assets or financial
liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position which is measured at fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and bills receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from shareholders and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities including
trade payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to shareholders and bank borrowings, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less
than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

3

R EE ®)

3.3 AV A

AEERGAHHRRENLBIEAT
EHEHENCREERLRER -

AEBEREERIRE S EBFARE
WERE - HAEKRIE - AR R 3R
EReIBRSEFEY MAKETRE
BEREESENFIEA  HMRNHER
FEFT IR A BRR FIE A R RTTRERK
HRZEEREERSRBBEBEHE
B HREERAQFERS -

AMAIR—FNEREERAEBZ
HERTAGHEEARRRERER
ERE RAUARENEREBEITFEE
BEAEERBUERITATSNER
MIZHEFRRENRERERR TN
ffst e

i
v

ek RRR

et RHAFIREBELRRAMEAR (B
EREHBBRATRRBAENRKEHES)
FrgRTE -

AEBMERKELSZHEMG RERER - RIEE
EORUEENEFEARIGEFTHER
BRAN - AEXEBREHAR T — @/ K
FEHEERABREEFLERHBNMG
At R BRmAIT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

4.1 Impairment of receivables and contract
assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables and contract assets based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s historical default rates, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. The identification
of impairment of receivables and contract assets
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of receivables and contract assets and loss for
the impairment of receivables and contract assets
recognised in the periods in which such estimates have
been changed.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
directors of the Company. The directors review the Group'’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The directors have determined the operating
segment based on these reports.

The directors consider the Group's operation from a business
perspective and determine that the Group has two reportable
operating segments being manufacturing of lace and
provision of dyeing services:

Manufacturing of lace — principally engaged in manufacturing

of lace based on customers’ orders for lingerie and other
products;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(Continued)

Provision of dyeing services — principally engaged in provision
of dyeing services of lace and swim wear fabrics based on
customers’ orders.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of
the Group’s revenues are from contracts with customers and
are recognised over time.

(a) Segment revenue by operating
segments

The segment information provided to the directors
for the reportable segments for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

Manufacturing of lace
BERE
2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 2019
ARETR ARETT

W=k oIBER @)

REABRE-TENERBTFITERM
TE8 R R R B IRT

EERBREREFNNFTEFHLEED I
RIE o

B E2020F K2019F 12 A31HIEFE
FENABREKREETPINAEL
BE 5 T LARERR o

(a) BEE 7 EE 2K 2D AU

S

BX

MEZATIRENHEZ2020F K 2019F
NANBLEFENAZ2HSIH D
BRI

Provision of

dyeing services Total
REYUFERE @t
2020 2019 2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000
2020 F 20194 2020 F 20194
ARETRE ARETT ARETR ARETR

Segment revenue k= 76,675 85,506 121,803 117,937 198,478 203,443
Segment results DEELE 33,579 32,897 40,278 34,007 73,857 66,904
Other income Hep e A 5,328 744
Other losses, net HEiERFE (1,584) (6)
Unallocated operating KO

costs (24,792) (16,659)
Finance costs, net BMERAFE (216) (1,908)

Profit before income tax TSR AT FI

52,593 49,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W&HEoSIBER &)

(Continued)
(b) Segment revenue by customers’ (b) ZEFHIEBNEE DD EU
geographical location m
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue ARE BT R B FEMA L o A% E iR g
by geographical location, which is determined by the NEBEREFPNEET)E KN
location of customers, is as follows: N
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194

AR¥TT ARBETT

The PRC F 196,672 200,943
Hong Kong aBE 1,124 1,368
Others Hit 682 1,132
198,478 203,443

(c) Information about major customers () FEEFER
Revenue derived from any single external customer was H E£2020F K2019F 12 A31HIEF
less than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during the B EAE IR EERNEEEAR

years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. EEAUZE10% AT ©

(d) Details of contract liabilities (d) 6HEEBEHE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194

ARBT ARETT

Contract liabilities (Note 23) aHBEEMEE23) 3,440 1,307

Notes: ek -

(i)  Contract liabilities represent advanced payments () BAHBEEELIHAEETEPLPHRE
received from the customers for services that have not R P UELR TEURIE - R KA TEUR
yet been transferred to the customers. The contract RIEMHEEERS  aNBERER
liabilities fluctuated during the years ended 31 December 2020 M 2019F 12 A31BLEFER
2020 and 2019 due to fluctuation in sales orders with Frs & o

advanced payments.

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all (i) HZE2020F N2019F 12 A31HIEF
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of ARV BFEINREETNEGHNE
the financial years were fully recognised as revenue. BEBHIER R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z= 2020 12 A31 HIEF &

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e) Unsatisfied performance obligations

()

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied performance obligations
was not disclosed.

Non-current assets by geographical
location

All of the Group’s non-current assets were located in
the PRC.

Deyun Holding Ltd. (BEZERER AT *) — T —TFFR
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AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

6 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and net impairment

6 EMEEIMNAX

AABERAE HERDBEHAX  THAX
FeMEERANEEREBIEFENMX

losses on financial assets and contract assets are analysed as DT -
follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194
AR%T T ARETF T
Raw materials and consumables used 7 AR MR ROE #FE f A A 54,562 67,639
Employee benefit expenses, including EERIFAX (BEEEFHE)

directors’ emoluments (Note 9) (FF3E9) 37,703 36,842
Manpower service expenses (Note 9) ANERRBHZ (M7E9) 1,872 1,643
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) & E# Y (M 16) 258 246
Utilities KEE 9,863 10,305
Depreciation of properties, plant and M - B R R R A

equipment and right-of-use asset BEHNE (Mx14)

(Note 14) 15,389 16,047
Depreciation of investment property WEMENE (M 15)

(Note 15) 41 41
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5B 7 B 1,600 49
Listing expenses WX 13,319 7,190
Professional fees BEXEBA 3,105 1,718
Other tax and surcharges H I8 K& M n & 1,830 1,844
Packaging expenses 2153 1,569 1,522
Waste handling charges BEMRIEE 4,068 4,089
Net impairment losses on financial assets & BAE LA HEEME

and contract assets [gi=bE 425 -
Others HAh 3,809 4,023
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution  $4& A - $HE kD #HFX -

expenses, administrative expenses and THAZRSHEER

net impairment losses on financial assets & %) & EREE 1B F 5458

and contract assets 149,413 153,198
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

7 OTHER INCOME H At g A
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
ARET AREFTT
Government grants (Note) BT B (B EE) 5,065 580
Rental income (Note 15) e WA (FI:E15) 34 34
Others Hb 229 130
5,328 744

Note: Government grants are all income related and there exists no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
government grants.

BYRE - BT HEBh 2 B0 S U AAERE - B AT I MM A
ZE BT B ARER G S A S AR -

8 OTHER LOSSES, NET B S FE5E

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194
AR% T AREF T

Losses on disposal of properties, plant and & ¥ - BE & ZENEE
equipment (620) (101)
Exchange differences EHZER (964) 95
(1,584) )

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND

9 EERFAXRADERRE

MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES, X (BEEEHS)
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
ARET AREFTT
Wages and salaries ITERF® 34,667 35,072
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ERE KA — RE T2
(Note a) (MfEEa) 2,877 1,494
Other staff welfares Hi 8 TEH 159 276
Total employee benefit expenses (including & & #& | fd % 48 %8
directors’ remunerations) (BREEEHL) 37,703 36,842
Manpower service expenses (Note b) AN ERRF Y (isEb) 1,872 1,643
39,575 38,485

Deyun Holding Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

9 EERBANBEIRANERRKE
R (BREEMNE) @)

(Continued)
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  Pension costs — defined contribution plans (@) BAEBEA — REHEREE
The PRC =
As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in ERAPBEABERIRERATE  RPBREE
the PRC, the subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes BB ARERHEEMBEREB RN
to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees. For B VEH MR o B £ 20204 K% 2019412 A 31
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, depending HEFE STEENECPEROLEER
on the provinces of the employees’ registered residences MIfEE  MEBAREEHERET &R
and their current region of work, the subsidiary contributed FEALKHR BUBRE—SPEEREZE
certain percentages of the salaries of its employees and had IR G SR NGB AE L BRI AT -
no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or ZEEREYHERFEBEEFRIKES
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state- WEHRARESEE -
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
(b)  Manpower service expenses (b) ANEBERBRBFEX
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the HZE2020F K2019F 12 A31HILEFEE - K&
Group entered into certain manpower service arrangements SEE-KPBEIFADBERREEE L
with an external manpower service organisation in the PRC. ETANERBREZHE - BBEABLH - Z
Under these arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower BERHBERBERRE T AERETAF
requirements were fulfilled by this organisation at agreed TR MARENANERBZREEIER
service fees whereas the human resources provided were BRES MASEREREHOALEHEAEE
directly employed by the service organisation. The individuals I AT (B RA R o
providing services to the Group did not have any employment
relationship with the Group.
() Five highest paid individuals (0 HEERESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HZE2020F K2019F 12 A31HILEFEE - &
the Group include nil and one director for the years ended 31 SEIEESTMALARERETER—%
December 2020 and 2019 respectively, whose emoluments are B HAEMERMEMFTMZNNOHIFTH -
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 34. The emoluments HZE2020F R2019F 1231 HILEFE - B
payable to the remaining five and four individuals for the years NHTEERMNEATHBMSHOT -
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
2020 2019
ARBTR ARETFT
Wages and salaries ITERF® 759 848
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ~ RIRE A — R EH KRGS 44 35
803 883
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND 9
MANPOWER SERVICE EXPENSES,
INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

EBEERBEIRADERRSE
X (BIEEEME) @)

BsE : (&)
(0 hEREFMALGE)
HagmEMT -

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Emolument band e EE
Not more than HKD 1,000,000 %12 1,000,000 7T 5 4

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

HZE2020F R2019F 12 A31BIEFE - K
EESERNTNESSAESERTMALTE
BT AT B & 1E & N B3 sk 7E I BR AR A R BF A 8%
B IERBERAEE -

10 BB R4S FEE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194
AR%T AREFTT
Finance income mE WA
Interest income MewA 8 13
Finance costs [Z:5=92%:
Unwinding of discount on other payables 3 ft Ji& 1~ 7 18 & #7 28 3 13 (8) (8)
Interest expenses on bank borrowings SRITIERFERAX (626) (2,097)
Less: capitalised on qualifying assets W EEREEERE 30 66
____________ (604) (2,039
Finance costs, net MERNFEEHE (216) (1,908)

Borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates of 4.93% and
5.19% per annum on qualifying assets for the years ended

31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively.

HZ2020F K 2019F 12 B31HIEFE © B
TEAFNERI S RIEAEEREERINET
LR §74.93% K 5.19% 5 F| R E AL, -
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AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1M1 FREHRAX

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Deyun
Technology, the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, has qualified
for high and new technology enterprises status and is
therefore subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no

HZE2020F K2019F 12 A31HILFE - &
EEEFPBRNHNBRAREERNBEALERER
SR EA AL EEERAEHE
15% ©

HZE2020F K 2019F 12 A31HIEFE A
RAEB W EEBERTOEF - I ERER
AU EHRREREENESHTIREE -

assessable profit in Hong Kong.

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194
AR%T T ARBEF T
Current income tax BRERFTIS R 8,859 7,015
Deferred income tax (Note 24) BIEFTISHE (M52 24) (87) 209
Income tax expense i 8,772 7,224
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194
AR®T ARETIT
Profit before income tax R P45 25 Al e 7 52,593 49,075
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to 1BE M B A R s A A AR =X
profits of the respective subsidiaries FTERIE 7,661 7,253
Tax effect of: M2
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AT F1F F 2 2,505 1,194
Super deductions from research and TR SRR A0 (B 5E)
development expenditure (Note) (1,394) (1,223)
Income tax expense Frefims 8,772 7,224

Note:

According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises engaging
in research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to
175% of their research and development expenses incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for
that year.
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used for such purpose has
been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the issue of
shares in connection with the capitalisation issue which took
place on 16 December 2020.

12 SRER

BREARBFIZARRREE ARG F BRI
HZE2020F K&2019F 12 A3MHIEFEAND
BITEBERMEFIEETE - 5Lt B WER
FZBRINETFHEHEBEN2020F12 5
16 HETHEMNMLBEITEBNRMETAR
EEITIBPTAE -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Profit for the year attributable to owners N2 A1 B A FE1G F A% F
of the Company (RMB’000) (AR FT) 43,821 41,851
Weighted average number of ordinary BB 1T AR B0 N 19 8K
shares in issue (thousands of shares) (Fh) 945,000 864,999
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERN(ARESD)
(RMB cents) 4.64 4.84

There were no differences between the basic and diluted
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

BREE 2020 % 2019F 12 A31 B IEEE
WEBITEIIBEEEL AR WERE
AREERFITEER -
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AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and

2019 are set out below.

13 M{B 2 =]

AREBER2020F 2019412 A31BHN T &
M8 A mEFIEAT o

Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of Percentage of effective interest
Name of subsidiary and kind of legal entity place of operation paid up capital held/controlled by the Group
ERER TR REBBE/BHE
WEARER EABRER TEFBREEHY HRRARE ERERAIL
2020 2019

2020% 20195
Direct Interests:
ERER:
Deyun Investment Limited BVI, limited liability company Investment holding in BVI UsD1 100% 100%
Deyun Investment Limited RERAEE  BRAA ERBATEERALR 1%
Indirect Interests:
BiEs
Deyun Holding (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding in Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100%

company
Deyun Holding (HK) Limited &7 * BB AF ERBRALER 18T
Fujian Deyun Consulting The PRC, limited liability Investment holding in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Services Co. Ltd.* company
REEBELARBERLR B FRAF EhEREER AR 10,000,0007C
Fujian Deyun Technology The PRC, limited liability Manufacturing of lace and RMB98,670,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* company provision of dyeing services
in the PRC
RREEMERNERRR  +E FRAT EREARETER AR 98,670,0007C
RELZRH

* For identification purpose only * EHER
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

14 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 N -BERRERERAESR

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET =3
Plant and Office Motor ~ Construction Right-of-
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles inprogress  Sub-total  use asset Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
83 REREE  WOBE  RE BRIE % BPERE 8%
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R019E1518
Cost A 37,751 253,131 3470 1,090 1,799 297,241 412 301,362
Accumulated depreciation  Z147% (83%2) (132,833) (2,276) (597) - (144,058) (1,235) (145,293)
Net book amount SEFE 29,39 120,298 1,194 493 1,799 153,183 2,886 156,069
Year ended 31 December EZ 201951231
2019 LEE
Opening net book amount 41 E E(E 2939 120298 1,19 493 179 153,183 2886 156,069
Additions AE 1,631 6,390 338 = 1,519 9,878 = 9,878
Transfers g2 1,805 = S = (1,809) = S =
Depreciation (Note 15) 7 (2 15) (198)  (13565) 315) (103) - (159)) B) (16047
Disposals & (118) (145) - - . (263) = (263)
Closing netbook amount ~ BREMF(E 30,735 112,978 1217 390 1513 146,833 2,804 149,637
At31December2019 20195128318
Cost A 40997 258,809 3,808 1,090 1513 306,217 412 310338
Accumulated depreciation  ZH7% (10262 (145831) 2,591) (700) - (159384) (1317 (160,701)
Net book amount SEFE 30,735 112,978 1217 390 1513 146,833 2,804 149,637
Year ended 31 December EZ 2020512431
2020 LEE
Opening net book amount - 4N E F(E 30,735 112,978 1217 390 1513 146,833 2,804 149,637
Additions hE 9% 7,904 86 - 8,645 16,731 - 16,731
Transfers EE - 1,530 357 - (1,887) - - -
Depreciation (Note 15) & (H3F15) (2,079) (12,763) (361) (104) - (15,307) (82) (15,389)
Disposals HE - (1,606) - - - (1,606) - (1,606)
Closing netbook amount ~ BREMF(E 28,752 108,043 1,299 286 8,211 146,651 2,12 149,373
At31December2020  R2020512831A
Cost A 41,093 264,444 4,251 1,090 8211 319,149 4121 323,270
Accumulated depreciation  Z5137% (12341)  (156,401) (2952) (804) - (172499) (1399)  (173.897)
Net book amount SESE 28,752 108,043 1299 286 8,271 146,651 21 149,373
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

14 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
depreciation expenses have been charged in cost of sales,
selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses

14 Y% BERRERERAESR

= (4#%)

HZE2020F KX2019F 12 A31 B IEFE @ 31
ERYCEHBEERDN HERDHAST RIT
BAEZMBROT :

as below:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194
AR¥F T ARET T
Cost of sales $HE A AR 14,731 15,431
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX 7 5
Administrative expenses THAX 651 611
15,389 16,047

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 15 REWE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194

AR¥TT AREBTT

At 1 January m1A1TH
Depreciation (Note 6) e (fzE6)
At 31 December K12A31H

The Group leased out an investment property through
operating lease. The lease typically runs for an initial period of
5 years. The lease does not include variable lease payments.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value of
the Group's investment property was approximately
RMB1,240,000 and RMB1,210,000. These fair values are
determined by the directors of the Company mainly with
reference to a valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer, using the income capitalisation
approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 15 REWE )
The following amounts have been recognised in the T5)& BB R iR A U = s

consolidated income statement:

E/

oy

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 20194
AR®T T ARBTF T
Rental income from investment property &M ER L WA (F:E7)
(Note 7) 34 34
Direct operating expenses attributable to ~ E£MH WA KNI EMEEEN
investment property that generates HEL2RX
rental income (8) (11)
26 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
amortisation of approximately RMB51,000 and RMB39,000
has been charged in administrative expenses and
approximately RMB207,000 and RMB207,000 has been
charged in cost of sales respectively.

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 BILEE
Software
RMB’000
B4
AREFIT
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H
Cost [DFN 1,141
Accumulated amortisation R (323)
Net book amount R FE 818
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019512A31BLLEE
Opening net book amount BV EREFE 818
Additions NE 261
Amortisation (Note 6) By (fsEe) (246)
Closing net book amount BREREDRE 833
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12831H
Cost B AR 1,402
Accumulated amortisation R (569)
Net book amount IRMEFE 833
Year ended 31 December 2020 EZE2020F12A31BLLEFEE
Opening net book amount ERYIRRE F{E 833
Additions NE 70
Amortisation (Note 6) 55 (fiste) (258)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 645
At 31 December 2020 72020512 H31H
Cost B AR 1,472
Accumulated amortisation REt# iy (827)
Net book amount BRmFE 645

B ZE2020F R2019F 12 A31HIEEE - »
A% AR # 51,0000 & A R # 39,000 7T 2 #
HE BITERE MR 4 AR 207,000
TR AR 207,000 TE B #HER AR ©
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AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

17 RERETHWERMTR

CATEGORY
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
AR® T ARETF T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost B AR 2 A E
Trade and bills receivables (Note 20) B 5 W RIE KR ER
(Bi%E20) 13,060 15,694
Other receivables (Note 18) H e g 5k 8 (FFE18) 2,167 66
Amounts due from shareholders JE U B SR R IE (B 5 32(a))
(Note 32(a)) - 140
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BeMRSEEY (ME21) 109,483 38,480
124,710 54,380
Financial liabilities SHmas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost KA R 2B E
Trade payables (Note 25) B St 5xE (M 3E25) 10,706 14,058
Other payables and accruals (Note 23) H At B A5 5K IE R FERTRUA
(Bi5E23) 32,649 4,733
Amounts due to shareholders (Note 32(a))  FE& A% 3 7% 38 (Bff &£ 32(a)) = 5,000
Bank borrowings (Note 26) SRITE R (B3 26) 13,000 13,000
56,355 36,791
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

18 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 18 FAAYFNIE & H fib fE R IR
RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 & 20194
AR®T ARET T
Current portion BERE o
Prepayments to suppliers TE A e P RRIE 613 107
Other prepayments H M FHIE 9 5
Other tax receivables HAth pE U 7 18 895 -
Other receivables (Note a) H bk ks (FisEa) 2,167 66
Prepaid listing expenses (Note b) TEf EmRAX (feEb) 6,329 2,349
10,013 2,527
Non-current portion FERNEIE S
Prepayments of acquisition of properties, WHEWIZ - BE L EZEN
plant and equipment TEfFIA 277 223

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The ¢

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of
other receivables approximated their fair values.

The prepaid listing expenses as at 31 December 2020 and 2019

were incurred in connection with the listing of the Group and
will be deducted from equity upon listing.

arrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments and other

receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

(@) 20204 %2019 12 A31H » HAb UK
BEHWREESEQAFERS -

(b) FA2020%F 22019412 A31 HETEN L
XEAEE WA YR EWERES
IR -

AR ER B TR SR K E A R W R IR RO AR E B A
THEEHE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

2020 & 20194

ARET T ARET T

RMB AR 4,653 623
HKD BT 5,637 2,127
10,290 2,750

Deyun Holding Ltd. Annual Report 2020




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

19

20

INVENTORIES 19 78
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
2020 F 2019
ARMF R ARMET T
Raw materials E R 9,272 9,922

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 amounted to approximately RMB54,562,000 and
RMB67,639,000 respectively.

CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

HZE2020F K2019F 12 A1 HIEFE
LD B4 B AR MES4,562,000 7T K AR
67,639,000 TR TF ER AR BRI W& A
SHEMAN

20 SHNEE BEZEBRBRERE
BRE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194

ARBT ARETT

Contract assets BHEE 7,564 16,585
Less: Provision for impairment of W EREERERE

contract assets (8) -
Contract assets, net ARBEEFHE 755% 16,585
Trade receivables Z 5 W IE 10,461 13,161
Bills receivables FEUE & 3,260 3,145
Less: Provision for impairment of W B 5 EBGRIE R E R E

trade receivables (661) (612)
Trade and bills receivables, net BHRWFIANRERREFE 13,060 15,694

20,616 32,279

Contract assets represent the Group's rights to consideration
for work completed but unbilled for its business. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional which generally take one to three
months. The balances of contract assets fluctuated from year-
to-year during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
as the Group provided varying amount of goods or services
that were unbilled before the year-ends.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of
contract assets, trade and bills receivables approximated their
fair values.

The Group’s sales were generally on credit terms primarily
from 30 to 60 days.

EHEERBAEERHEERCERERAE
EMRGWERENER - EREFKBE
BHEE(—REN—Z=FEA)  ANEESE
BEEFRWRFE - AR AEBERERZA
FIiRtEEWSRBENARELSE IR R
HZE2020F 201912 A3 BILFEEHNA
HEERBIEFIZE -

20204 201912 A31 8 8 & &
EHREFBEBLREREENEMELEEQF
BERE -

AEEHENEERN —REZNF30£60H -
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS 20 EHNEE BEZEWFRERE

RECEIVABLES (continued) EiE @)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of REBESHNEERERENZSHOT

contract assets are as follows:

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’'000

2020 F 20194

AR%T T ARET T

As at 1 January R1A1HE - -
Provision for impairment on LR EEG RO ERE

a collective basis 8 -

As at 31 December ®12A31H 8 -

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade REBME ZEBFIBERERBEEHFIBN

receivables are as follows: T

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

2020 F 20194

AR®T T ARBFT

As at 1 January == 612 612
Provision for impairment on an R E B AEGHE R E R E

individual basis 386 =
Provision for impairment on a AR EEFHRA R ERE

collective basis 92 .

Reversal of provision for impairment B ER (61) =

Written-off of provision for impairment Tl 5 R (B B (368) =

As at 31 December Mm12A31H 661 612
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

20 CONTRACT ASSETS, TRADE AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of
trade and bills receivables, based on invoice date, was as

20 EHEE EZERWFERE
L% 4¢ )

R2020F K& 201912 A31 0 - E S ER K
EREWEEREZAHNEEITOT

follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
AR¥T ARET T
1 to 3 months 12318 A 10,768 11,238
Over 3 months 31E A E 2,953 5,068
13,721 16,306

Less: Provision for impairment of B S EYBGRIE R E R E
trade receivables (661) (612)
13,060 15,694

The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade
and bills receivables were denominated in the following

AEBANEE BZRUFARERER
RREE T EEEHE

currencies:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 & 20194
AR®T T AREFTT
RMB AR 20,328 31,784
usD e 288 495
20,616 32,279

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 was the carrying value of the receivables and
contract assets mentioned above. The Group did not hold any
collateral as security.

A2020F K 2019F 12 A3 HM S S EZEE
B A b SRl fEW B R A A EEMEREIE ©
ANEE I EISE TR RREAKE -
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21 RERBESEEY

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’'000

2020 20194

ARET ARBT T

Cash on hand FERE 36 10

Cash at banks RITIRE 109,447 38,470

Cash and cash equivalents HERReEEY 109,483 38,480

Maximum exposure to credit risk BaEERE 109,447 38,470

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the RekReZBYREaRienEarmMs &
purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: FEATIER :

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

2020 F 20194

AR¥T T ARBTTT

Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 109,483 38,480

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

AEERL R SENHEAEN THIH
MEEHE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

2020 F 20194

AR¥F T ARET T

RMB AR 93,485 16,102
usD ETT 8,519 8,047
HKD BT 7.479 14,331
109,483 38,480

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rate. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated
their fair values.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounting to approximately
RMB109,447,000 and RMB38,470,000, respectively, were
deposited with the banks in the PRC where the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of
the PRC.
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 IR
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
HKD'000 RMB’000
BHEE HE H{E
FAT AREFIT
Share capital B
Authorised: JAETE ¢
Ordinary shares of 201941 A48 Gk
USD1.00 each as at 4 BE) BR%1.00E T
January 2019 (date of B
incorporation) 50,000 390 345
As at 31 December 2019 7R2019F 12 A31H
and 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 50,000 390 345
Decrease in authorised 7K2020F 1 B16 AR B
ordinary shares of 1.00E TR EE LB
USD1.00 each on 16 (MisEd)
January 2020 (Note d) (50,000) (390) (345)
Increase in authorised 7K 2020F 1 B 16 B NEA
ordinary share of 0.01 BITHAE Bk
HKDO0.01 each on 16 (Mt3EDb)
January 2020 (Note b) 38,000,000 380 337
As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 38,000,000 380 337
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 22 FRA (#m)
Number of Nominal Nominal
shares value value
HKD’000 RMB’000
grig 4= H{E H{E
FHET ARBTT
Issued: BT
Issuance of ordinary shares 720194 1 A4 A (FEfft A2
of USD1.00 each on 4 HE3) #178 A% 1.00
January 2019 (date of ETHEBR

incorporation) (Note a) (FizEa) 10,000 78 69

Issuance of ordinary shares 12019412 20 B #17&
of USD1.00 each on 20 B 1.00 T A E @R
December 2019 (Note a) GEX) 10,000 78 69

As at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31H
and 1 January 2020 K2020%F1A81H 20,000 156 138

Cancellation of ordinary 202091 A 16 BB
shares of USD1.00 each 1.00ETTH L BIR
on 16 January 2020 (M3t )
(Note ¢) (20,000) (156) (138)

Issuance of ordinary shares 7220204 1 A 16 HE#1T& K
of HKDO0.01 each on 16 0.01 B HY & @Ak

January 2020 (Note c) (MF5EC) 20,000 —* —*
As at 31 December 2020 72020612 A31H 20,000 —* —*
* The amount was rounded to the nearest thousand e SRONBEEREOTA
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

On 4 January 2019, 10,000 ordinary shares were issued at
USD10,000. During the year ended 31 December 2019, 10,000
additional ordinary shares were issued at USD10,000 pursuant
to the Group’s Reorganisation as detailed in Note 1.2. As at
31 December 2019, total issued number and nominal value of
ordinary shares of the Company amounted to 20,000 shares
and USD20,000 respectively.

On 16 January 2020, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from US$50,000 divided into
50,000 USD Shares to the aggregate of (i) US$50,000 divided
into 50,000 USD Shares and (ii) HKD380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares with a par value of HKD0.01 each by
the creation of 38,000,000 new shares with a par value of
HKDO0.01 each.

On 16 January 2020, the Company allotted and issued 18,000
and 2,000 shares of par value of HKD0.01 each to Deyong
Investment and Glorious Way respectively and repurchased and
cancelled the 20,000 issued shares of par value of US$1.00
each.

Upon completion of the repurchase, 50,000 unissued USD
shares of the Company were cancelled and the authorised
share capital of the Company was reduced to HKD380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares with a par value of HKD0.01
each. The Company was still directly and wholly owned by
Deyong Investment and Glorious Way as to 90% and 10%
respectively.

22 R (%)

()

201941 A48  B1210,0003% T &9 B 1%
% 1710,000 f% & i@ A% - B Z=20194F 12 A 31
HIEFE RIBME 12l A E M EAR -
2 # 10,000 35 7T 3 17 10,000 A% ZE SN 3@ A% -
MR2019F 12 A31H A AR LA B
17# B LE{ES B4 20,000 f% 5% 20,000 7T ©

20201 8168 KRR AEAERAA
50,0003 Jt 5 A& 50,000 E TR H L =
(i)50,0003% 7T % A& 50,000 & E T & 15 +
X (ii)380,000 % JT % % 38,000,000 % & &
AEOIABTHRM 2B FEAER
38,000,000 f& & BX EIE 0.01 B T K FTAR (D ©

7202081 A16 A * A2 A% 5l M Deyong
Investment X Glorious Way B2 % X %% 77 18,000
fi% % 2,000 B & AXEI(E 0.01 BT A AR5 - WHE
o] % 7% $4 20,000 A & AR I (B 1.00 £ T E B
TR ©

BB 5k % - AN Q A) 50,000 A% & B 1T E TR
MEWEHE - AR RVEERAAIFE Z 380,000
7 JT 9 438,000,000 8 F AR E{E0.01 8 LAY
fi& 15 o ZX 2 AJ) & # B Deyong Investment &
Glorious Way E# 2 & ¥ E * 9 BlHH90%
R 10% S ©
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AR e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER 23 EHNAE HUENRERE
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS TR
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 & 20194
AR®T ARET T
Current portion B HA 36 55
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEWE BB NKEHED
plant and equipment FEH3IE 16,550 1,809
Other tax payables H At A B IR = 1,505
Other payables HAth & 5 5/ IE 369 149
Accruals for auditor's remuneration JE 5 1% S A 37 B 1,600 -
Accruals for employee benefit expenses  [ExHE B @ FIFI 2,744 5,022
Accruals for professional fees EETEXER 1,677 960
Other accruals Hfth pE /I8 173 185
Accrued listing expenses FEET ETRX 10,747 38
Deposits from customers XY EIE 3,999 3,246
Contract liabilities (Note 5(d)) a#H B E (M) 3,440 1,307
41,299 14,221
Non-current portion JERNHA I &
Other payables HAth & 5 FRIE 1,533 1,592

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of

MR2020F K 2019F 12 A31 0 KEEA 4
f,

the Group’s contract liabilities, other payables and accruals ﬁ s B RS ARIE M ERT ARTE R BRE B
approximated their fair values. NEERE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities, other AEEBEHEE  HiEMNKEBEREFT KA
payables and accruals were denominated in the following BERE B T 5 EBEHE
currencies:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
2020 & 20194
AR®T T ARETTT
RMB AR 32,633 15,305
uSD =V 553 -
HKD BT 9,646 508
42,832 15,813
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eI RRMET

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24 EiEHREBEEE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
2020 F 2019

ARBTR ARETT

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEE 346 433
The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years ELEHRBAERE ZE20204%E & 2019F 12 A
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking into STHIEEEMNEE CRET RYEEARBRG
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax FEREEES) T

jurisdiction, is as follows:

Accelerated

Deferred tax Contracts tax
(liabilities)/assets assets depreciation Others Total
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EERE(BE) BE EHEE MEBRERE Hity @t
ARBTFT ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H (98) (133) 7 (224)
Charged to the consolidated ~ FA%R& Wz K 0Bk
income statement (131) (42) (36) (209)
At 31 December 2019 2019F 12 A31H (229) (175) (29) (433)
Charged to the consolidated R4 & W5 =K%
income statement 181 61) (33) 87
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H (48) (236) (62) (346)
The Group had undistributed earnings of RMB119,284,000 2020512 A31H  REBEHNKRD K EF
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB63,942,000), which, if A ANK119,284,0007T (20195 : ARM
paid out as dividends, would be subject to tax in the hands of 63,942,0007T) * A1ERBEIRLT - R AR
the recipient. An assessable temporary difference exists, but BmIE - BN R A]A 8 0 12 B S
no deferred liability has been recognised as the parent entity AR EBENEE - AR EERRTE D
is able to control the timing of distributions of dividends from RELE - FEAHERZE  BURER
the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute these EERIE -

profits in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

25 TRADE PAYABLES

25 BEZENRE

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

2020 20194

ARET AREFTT

Trade payables B S ENFRIE 10,706 14,058

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of A2020F 201912 A31H - BSER
trade payables, based on invoice date, was as follows: TEIR B E R MR DT T ¢

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

2020 20194

AR¥F T ARETTT

1 to 3 months 1&231@A 9,631 12,623

Over 3 months 31E A E 1,075 1,435

10,706 14,058

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s trade payables were denominated in RMB and
approximated their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

26 BANK BORROWINGS 26 RITHER
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 20194
AR¥T T ARBTF T
Current portion B EA 55 17
Bank borrowings — secured RITIER— BT 13,000 13,000
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were A2020F 12 A31H - NEBERRITE IR
carried at a floating rate of 4.4% per annum (2019: 5.0% FREEL4% (20194 : 5.0%) K F B F R
per annum). FTE e
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts 2020 K 201912 B31H » RITEZH
of the bank borrowings were denominated in RMB and BREMEUARBE  WEHAQANFERES -
approximated their fair values.
As at 31 December 2020, the above bank borrowings were MR2020F 12 A318 LAl SRITERUAE
secured by the Group's properties, plant and equipment B EEE A AR 19,360,000 (20194 :
with carrying amounts of RMB19,360,000 (2019: AR #20,159,0007T) K% « E KR EE
RMB20,159,000). HAH -
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s bank 2020 2 2019% 12 A31H » "EB KR
borrowings were repayable within one year. TERER—FENEE -
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total undrawn banking R2020F 12 A31H  RNEEBEHARIZEIEIT
facilities amounted to approximately RMB62,000,000 (2019: FE B A AR 62,000,000 7T (2019 4F -
RMB40,000,000). AR #40,000,0007T) °
27 DIVIDEND 27 B &

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

KANBREZE2020F X2019F 12 A31 8 1k
FEVERMNKEIRARS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

28 FERERBERME

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income (a) BRETSBLAGE A SREEE LR

tax to net cash generated from ReFRHK
operations
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194
AR%T T ARBEF T
Profit before income tax B P 15 250 A g A 52,593 49,075
Adjustments for: FAT FIEELFE
Interest income FLE U A (388) (131)
Interest expenses b 604 2,039
Depreciation of properties, plantand ~ #1% - BRE LK ZETE
equipment 15,307 15,965
Depreciation of right-of-use asset TREEENE 82 82
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 258 246
Losses on disposal of properties, plant  HE#HE - BE &K ZEREE
and equipment 620 101
Depreciation of investment property WEMENE 41 41
Provision for impairment of trade EORKFEBERENEE
receivables and contract assets BB 486 =
Reversal of provision for impairment of & 5 & U ZX T8 Rk (B B 5 5 [
trade receivables (61) -
69,542 67,418
Changes in working capital: LiEEH
— Trade and bills receivables — 8 S5 EUGRIE R ERER 2,210 (941)
— Contract assets —EHEE 9,029 (2,426)
— Prepayments and other receivables — A FRIE K H i FE U FRIE (2.621) 3,103
~ Inventories —-=FE 650 (1,752)
— Trade payables — 8 S ENRIEA (3,352) (12,598)
— Other payables and accruals — E A FUB KRR SR 10,145 6,059
— Contract liabilities —&aHaE 2,133 789
Net cash generated from operations KEEENREFE 87,736 59,652
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e B ERERMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 28 MEREREBERWT @)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) In the consolidated statements of (b) RGZEBREREXRD  HEY
. 3 /8 =k
cash flows, proceeds from disposal X BERRENFASKEE
of properties, plant and equipment i
comprise:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194
AR®T AR®TT
Net book amount disposed HEMREFE 1,606 263
Losses on disposal of properties, plant  HEWE - BE M REMNEIE
and equipment (620) (101)
986 162
Proceeds from disposal of properties, ~ H&E#% ﬁi%&?&ﬁﬁ'\]
plant and equipment Fr i 513 101 162
Non-cash movement HR& /\m 885 =
986 162
(c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising (0 BMEZHELANEBEYENT
from financing activities are as follows:
Amounts
due to Bank
shareholders borrowings Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR R IE RAITHER st
AR®EF T ARBTT ARBFT
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H - 65,000 65,000
Cash flows REMNE
— Proceeds from bank —IRITIE R BRIA
borrowings - 27,000 27,000
— Repayments of bank —[EEBITIER
borrowings - (79,000) (79,000)
Other non-cash movement  E i 3FIR & & &) 5,000 - 5,000
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019%12831H 5,000 13,000 18,000
Cash flows ReEnE
— Proceeds from bank —RITIEFRPTISKIE
borrowings - 13,000 13,000
— Repayments of bank —EERRITER
borrowings - (13,000) (13,000)
— Consideration paid for the —tE B EHEWE —
acquisition of a subsidiary WEBRRMER
in respect to RE
reorganisation (5,000) - (5,000)
As at 31 December 2020 72020512 831H - 13,000 13,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29 EXREE
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have R2020F K 2019F 12 A31H - AEB L &
any material contingent liabilities. EMERNKAEE -

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30 EAANE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the years but RERBITNEREENEARFAAT

not yet incurred is as follows:

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194

AR¥T ARBETT

Contracted but not provided for SEERENCE ST 2,781 614
31 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITIES 31 CHEFEREARNEE
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for EEFESANRRITERERRNEENR
current bank borrowings are: EEWT :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194

AR¥T ARETT

Non-current portion FRBIBD
Charge at floating rate RFEH R WK
Properties, plant and equipment (Note 26) #1% ~ S M & & (B 26) 19,360 20,159

Total assets pledged as securities for bank & K 3 £ & R 17 & L8 T EY
borrowings EEBEE 19,360 20,159
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e B ERERMTE
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 A RS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in holding power over the investee; exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or
other entities.

The ultimate holding company and controlling shareholders
are disclosed in Note 1.1.

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as

follows:

Related parties

BAEE T A B R N IES] - HRZERIHERER
BHSRBAEEINEMBHITREEATZE NN
— 7 ERSERKREURNEDMESHK
ERFZAVEEF : URHERKREHRER
BAOMEEN UREREEDHNERE - R
R R B RSB S TS TR R
BBy o BEE T AR BAEMES -

RIS A R RAE BB R A 5 1.1 058 -

REE2020F 2019412 A31BILFER
REEBFEEXSHEBABIOT :

Relationship with the Company

BAEE T SRR QA B R
Lin Chaowei Director and shareholder
MEE EEI P
Lin Mingiang Director and shareholder
MR & EEI P
Lin Bingzhong Director and shareholder
HERE EREMERR
Lin Chaoji Shareholder
MREAE R
Lin Chaowen Director and shareholder
MEAX EERRRE
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e B ERERNMTE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BEAXRS @)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEB IR S
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BErE SRR EE N - BZE 2020
statements, during the yearsended 31 December 2020 FR2019F12A3THBLEFE U TR
and 2019, the following transactions were carried out 2 TH BB 75 1R & 77 B AR % E M G FGE
with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both 17 :
parties:
()  Outstanding balances with shareholders: () MAREZNRELLS
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
2020 F 20194

ARBT AREBTT

Amounts due from shareholders JiE U5 P BR R IE
— A company held by a pre-IPO —BHRAREEIREERE
investor (Note 1.2(g)) B2 A (M3 1.2(9) - 14
— Controlling shareholders —PERR AR R - 126
- 140
Amounts due to shareholders JE SRR SRR I8
— A company held by a pre-IPO —BHRAABERREERS
investor (Note 1.2(f)) B AR (TR 1.2(F) - (500)
— Controlling shareholders —PERR AR IR (B EE1.2(F)
(Note 1.2(f)) - (4,500)
- (5,000)
The balances with shareholders are derived from REREHREEFHENRS - T)
mutually agreed transactions, and were unsecured, mER 28 REREERIEE
interest-free, repayable on demand and of non- SHE -
trade in nature.
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEE &M
Key management includes directors and a senior FRERERRARNE - ER 2
management who have the responsibility for the R AREEBHNERERSRERE -
planning, directing, controlling and the execution of ENSENEZETERENFMIIRNT
the activities of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management is shown below:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 F 20194

AR¥T T ARET T

Wages and salaries TERF® 438 1,191

Pension costs — defined contribution BIRE A A — R EHKETE
plan 30 46
518 1,237
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 33 XAFHNHBRRARRFHHES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE )
COMPANY

ARATIR2020F 12 A 31 BRI EAA R K

Statement of financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2020

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 & 20194
BT AR¥F T AREF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR MRS 186,371 186,371
Current assets REEE
Prepayments SEENE O E] 6,329 2,349
Amounts due from shareholders FE U AR R 5B - 140
___________ 6329 2489
Total assets EE#E 192,700 188,860
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of AR2ATEE AELEZR
the Company
Share capital N —* 138
Reserves % (a) 186,373 186,373
Accumulated losses 2T EE (a) (22,423) (7,243)
Total equity =R 1 _6_3,_9_59__”””7”177797,7276787
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals FEETFRIE 12,616 38
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B /B~ R ZR A 16,134 9,554
Total liabilities a&E8s 28,750 9,592
Total equity and liabilities ERREEER 192,700 188,860

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and

was signed on its behalf.

Lin Mingiang
MHER
Director

EZE

ARNRNFHERRREEESTEN20214F
SA29HH#LETZE WA TALTRABRSE -

Wei Cunzhuo
L3

Director

EF

*  The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand

* EBANEBEREATA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserves movement of the Company

B (w)

(a) XARHEEE

33 ARFANMBRARK HiBE

Capital Exchange  Accumulated Total
reserve reserves losses reserves
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEXRREE B 5 ZitEE MRS
ARMETTT ARBFTT ARBETF T ARBEF T
At 4 January 2019 M20195184H
(date of incorporation) (A& B )
Loss for the period HNEE - - (7,243) (7,243)
Currency translation ERnEEE
differences - 2 . 2
Total comprehensive losses % [ &5 18 4258 s ey W (7243) (7241)
Transaction with owners E2#EE AKX Z
Contribution surplus (Note) % A Z& &k (Fi&E) o3 = e 186,371
At 31 December 2019  #2019%12H31H
and 1 January 2020 % 2020181H 186,371 2 (7,243) 179,130
Loss for the year FAEE - - (15,180) (15,180)
Total comprehensive losses 2 [ /&5 18 4 58 - - (15,180) (15,180)
At 31 December 2020 2020612 H31H 186,371 2 (22,423) 163,950
Note: F 5

The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
pursuant to the Reorganisation as set out in Note 1.2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

34 EEREMNRER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The remuneration of each director is set out below: FESHHMNERIIWT -
Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ benefitsin ~ to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonus kind scheme Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B¥R EIBR#Ae
BEpe He e nEEA BENER  HENER -
ARETR AR¥Tn AR%Tr AR%Tn ARETr AR¥Tz
For the year ended BZ2020%12831A
31 December 2020 LEE
Executive directors: BOES:
- Lin Bingzhong -HER - 97 - - 8 105
~Lin Mingiang -HR® - 37 - - - 37
- Lin Chaowei —HEE - 97 - - 8 105
- Lin Chaowen —HE#X - 97 - - 7 104
- Wei Cunzhuo -BEN - 97 - - . 97
- Lin Lil — A - 63 - - 7 70
- 488 - - 30 518
For the year ended BZ20196128318
31 December 2019 I:3::4
Executive directors: BOES:
- Lin Bingzhong - RS - 97 100 - 12 209
- Lin Mingiang -HE® - 37 150 - = 187
- Lin Chaowei — AR - 97 100 - 12 209
- Lin Chaowen —HE#X - 97 100 - 12 209
- Wei Cunzhuo -REN - 97 100 - - 197
- Lin Lil — A - 60 - 6 66
- 485 550 - 1) 1,077
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Lin Mingiang, Lin Bingzhong, Lin Chaowei, Lin
Chaowen, Wei Cunzhuo and Lin Lili were appointed
as executive directors of the Company on 20 March
2020. The directors’ emoluments are presented as if the
executive directors had been appointed throughout the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Sheng Zijiu, Chow Kit Ting, Yip Koon Shing and Wong
Chun Sek Edmund were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 16 December
2020. During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the independent non-executive directors have
received nil directors’ remuneration in the capacity of
directors.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
none of the directors of the Company (i) received or
paid any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or (iii) waived
or has agreed to waive any emolument.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z= 2020 12 A31 HIEF &

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-

loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
controlled entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & %= 20204 12 A31 H It F &

35 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following
significant events took place subsequent to 31 December
2020:

(@) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the
shareholders on 16 December 2020, conditional on the
share premium account of the Company being credited
as a result of the issue of the offer shares by the
Company pursuant to the share offer, the directors were
authorised to capitalise an amount of HKD9,449,800
standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company on 13 January 2021 by applying such sum
in paying up in full at par 944,980,000 shares, such
shares to be allotted and issued to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of numbers of
the Company at the close of business on 31 December
2020 (or as they may direct) in proportion to their then
existing shareholdings in the Company, each ranking
equally in all respects with the then existing issued
shares.

(b) On 13 January 2021, the shares of the Company were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. In connection with the Listing
completed on 13 January 2021, the Company issued
a total of 315,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of
HKDO.4 per share for a total proceeds (before related
share issuance costs) of HKD126,000,000. Total
share issuance costs amounting to approximately
HKD 16,913,000 (approximately RMB14,587,000) would
be accounted for as a deduction from share premium.
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BIERENR 202012 F16 B BBNE
FURHR AR ARBERMDEFE T
BERMDEBAQRD GERER A
BT EBEER2021F1 A13BERER
AR B AR 9 5 (B BR /Y #E BR 889,449,800
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2020F 12 A31 B (iR B E Al gL38R)
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FR2021FE1 13 E R LT M
T ARAERER0.45 TR E KB
774 315,000,000 f% & 3@ % © AT 18 &
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